
 

 

 

 

  
 

 

IGA Governing Board 

Contract for Early Childhood Educational Services 

Tri-Board Meeting 

Tuesday – November 28, 2017 – 7:00 p.m. 

Oak Park and River Forest High School – Room 293E 

201 N. Scoville Ave, Oak Park, IL   60302 

Agenda 
  

1.  Call to Order  

1. 1.  Roll Call - Oak Park Elementary District #97  

1. 2.  Roll  Call - Oak Park River Forest District #200  

1. 3.  Roll Call - Village of Oak Park  

2.  Approval of Agenda  

3.  Public Comment  

4.  Collaboration Report on Progress: Building Oak Park's Early Childhood Community 

System July - 2013 to Present 
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5.  Using Data to understand our children and inform our work 54 

6.  Finance Report  

6. 1.  FY2016-2017 Financial Statements 69 

6. 2.  FY2017-2018 October Year to Date Reports: Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss 81 

6. 3.  Administrative Agent Report  

6. 4.  IGA Administrative Fund 89 

7.  Miscellaneous Updates  

7. 1.  State Changes  

7. 1. 1.  Re-application process for early childhood funding  

7. 1. 2.  Developmental screening requirements  

7. 1. 3.  Budget update  

7. 2.  Erikson - Early Childhood Leadership Academy  

7. 2. 1.  Barbara Bowman Leadership Fellows - Felicia Starks Turner and Carolyn 

Newberry Schwartz 

 

7. 2. 2.  McCormick Foundation Executive Fellows - Bob Spatz and Carol Kelley  

8.  Adjourn  

9.  INFORMATIONAL ITEMS  

9. 1.  Report on Contract Implementation: July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2017 91 

9. 2.  Information Report on Contract Indicators: Measuring Progress 2016-2017 102 

 

These organizations do not discriminate on the basis of disabilities in the admission or access to its programs or activities. We invite 

individuals requiring reasonable accommodations to contact the ADA Coordinator (708) 524-3004 at least 48 hours before the 

scheduled meeting time. This agenda can also be made available in a digital format. 

 



Report on Our Progress:

Building Oak Park’s 

Early Childhood Community System

July 2013 - Fall 2017
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Reminder About Our Beginnings

• Initiated in 2002 -- impetus came from Oak Park Elementary School District 97

• Driving Issue  Ensuring that every Oak Park child has access to high-quality 
early care and learning experiences. Perceived that opportunity gaps in early 
childhood lead to very real disparities in what children bring to kindergarten. 

• 2/3 of disparities in achievement are in place before children enter 
kindergarten. The persistence of these disparities show how difficult it is for 
schools to make the difference. 

• The early childhood sector is deeply fragmented, of wide ranging quality and it 
is segregated based on ability to pay for services.
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Reminder About Our Beginnings

• Established in 2003 as a nonprofit organization, the Collaboration became a 
public/private partnership in which all of the local governmental agencies 
contribute financially and participate through staff and/or board involvement

• Now have more than 70 active partners:

– Village, Elementary and High School Districts, Township, Park District, 
Library

– Universities

– Health Care Providers, Developmental Service Providers, Early 
Intervention

– Child care centers, preschools, home child care providers

– Donors and community members
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The Heckman Equation

There are lasting benefits from high-quality early childhood 
experiences for every child throughout their lifetimes, 
including:
• Increased educational productivity, 
• Decreased involvement with police and the juvenile 

justice system,
• Fewer student discipline issues,
• Decreased use of drugs and alcohol by middle schoolers 

and teens,
• Most recent analyses show returns on investments range 

from 7 to 13%.
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April 2013 

The Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) 

• After 10 years of making discrete strategic efforts to increase 
the capacity of early learning providers to increase quality and 
improve access to care, the Village, Elementary and High 
School Districts agreed on the vital importance of high-quality 
early childhood services to their missions and to the vision that 
Oak Park held as a diverse community committed to the 
success of every resident. … “a stake in the ground issue.”

• Established a ground breaking Intergovernmental Agreement 
to purchase services from the Collaboration for Early 
Childhood to establish an integrated system of high-quality 
programs after more than a year of discussions. Pro bono legal 
opinion that provided the framework for the IGA was written 
by Darryl Davidson of Miller Canfield.
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Children arrive at kindergarten safe, healthy, 
ready to succeed and eager to learn (IL ELC)

Every child has 
access to high-
quality early care 
and education

All parents have 
the information 
and support they 
need in their role 
as a child’s first and 
most important 
teacher

The most at-risk 
children and their 
families receive 
intensive services 
to ensure healthy 
development and 
school readiness 
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Professional Development Strategy

Goal: Improve quality of early learning experiences by 
increasing the professional skills of the early childhood work 
force in Oak Park and River Forest and forming a 
professional learning community. 9



Professional Development Strategy
Annual Symposium began in 2003 – began with 140 attendees and 
grew to a signature event attended by almost 400, of which more 
than 78% are early learning professionals who live and/or teach in 
Oak Park or River Forest.

The Symposium workshops are accredited by all state oversight 
bodies including: Illinois State Board of Education, Early 
Intervention Services, and Illinois Gateways to Opportunity. 
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Professional Development
Promote adoption of research-based curricula through workshop 
series, coaching in curriculum implementation and intentional 
inclusion of social emotional learning standards in activities. 

Reach has grown from 6-8 centers per year to 130 - 140 staff 
members staff at 31 child care centers and 24 child care homes. 
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Professional Development: After the IGA

Connect centers, preschools and family child care providers to state 
systems – leverage state supported advising and guidance to systems 
designed to increase quality.

Provide some individual support as centers and family child care 
providers engage in the state Quality Rating System, ExceleRate, and 
work to obtain credentials.
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After more than a decade of effort, made contact with the 42 
previously unknown, license-exempt providers in the 
Village (family, friend and neighbor care). 

Met with these providers in the Oak Park Public Library 
computer lab to engage them in the State Quality Rating 
system and support their online coursework to meet training 
requirements through the Gateways system. 

Helped 26 providers meet requirements for state child care 
payments.  

Professional Development: 

New Initiatives in 2017
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Professional Development Impact

• The number of child care centers and preschools 
participating in the ExceleRate Quality Rating System 
doubled from 9 to 20.
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Professional Development Impact
Hours and credentials earned by early childhood professionals as 
reported on our workforce survey:
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Professional Development: 

Plan for Progress
• Continue to increase engagement of license-exempt 

providers.

• Consider ways to connect early learning programs in Oak 
Park to the Collaboration as an expectation for doing 
business.

• Continue training series, coaching and supporting 
engagement in ExceleRate and Gateways Credentialing 
programs. 
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Developmental Screening Strategy

Goal: Ensure every child under kindergarten age receives at 
least 1 developmental screening per year and that children 
qualifying for services receive them.
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Developmental Screening Strategy
Formed a Physicians Network in 2008 to increase developmental 
screenings by pediatricians and family practice physicians during 
well child visits.

Continue to offer bi-annual meetings on key child development 
topics to foster connections and align efforts among medical 
practitioners, early learning providers and developmental 
therapists.
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Developmental Screening Strategy
Began hearing and vision screening after the Village 
determined that it could no longer support this activity in 
2009. 

Hearing and vision are foundational for literacy development 
and social skills. Little losses have major impact on very young 
children.

Now screen 1,400 children ages 3-5, 
who are not in kindergarten. 
We work with the 34 participating
sites to ensure that children receive 
any needed follow up services. 
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Developmental Screening Program  

January 2014 – Hired full time Developmental Screening 
Coordinator to develop and implement a developmental screening 
program with child care and early learning providers, using a 
web-based screening tool.

July 2014 – Launched screening program by providing training 
and a support program with 20 center-based providers and family 
child care providers. 

FY2017 program now includes 30 sites: 
17 child care centers and preschools 
9 family child care providers 
3 medical practices
1 social service agency
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Developmental Screening Program

Infrastructure for a Developmental Screening 
Program is well established.

• Usage agreement with District 97 to use online system.

• Developed required parental authorizations.

• Customized the database fields to help us monitor follow-
up activities.

• Developed report to facilitate communication between 
adults involved in child’s life:  parent, child care or early 
learning provider, therapist, medical provider. 
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Developmental Screening Program: 

Impact

In FY2017, 107 children were referred for additional 
assessments based on all of these screenings. 

22



Developmental Screening Program:

Plan for Progress 
Foster a robust parental demand for developmental screening as 
an important component of monitoring a child’s health and 
development – like a vaccine. 

Continue to expand number of early learning sites involved in the 
program. 

Support providers to increase their skills at supporting children 
with delays in the programs.

Improve data collection around recording of follow up activities.
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Parent Information and Support Strategy

Goal: To ensure that parents have the information and 
support they need to feel confident in their role as their 
child’s first and most important teacher.

Publish Early Childhood Resource Directory 
– Became the “go to” resource for parents 
and social service providers. 

– Distribute 10,000-12,000 every other year.

“Watch and Help Me Grow” published in 2012. 
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Parent Information and Support Strategy

2013 – Contracted with one agency to expand home visiting 
programs to increase service from 30 to 110 families meeting risk 
criteria and also develop and offer continuum of supports to all 
families from online resources to workshops to parent coaching. 

2015 – Changed approach of contracting with one agency to 
provide full compendium of services.

- Determined that a contract for home visiting services to increase 
intensive supports should be a separate contract.

- Issued a modified RFP to 2013 respondents and selected 
Easterseals, a child and disability services agency located on 
Madison Street in Oak Park since 1968.
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Parent Information and Support
Increased capacity to provide home visiting services through 
implementation of research-based, evidence-informed model 
program: 

• Three agencies now offer the “Parents as Teachers” 
program: Easterseals, Hephzibah, and New Moms. 

• Capacity has grown from 30 families to up to 150 families. 

• Leverage resources from the Illinois Office of Early 
Childhood Development.

• Contracted with the Village of Oak Park to secure services 
to coordinate intake for three programs to simplify 
referral process. Program launched in Fall 2017.
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Parent Information and Support:

After the IGA
Spring-Summer 2016: Redeveloped the “lighter 
support” program. Conducted a survey of 446 parents 
and 7 focus groups, plus a survey of 48 professionals
from 39 service organizations
and 15 interviews 
with 29 professionals.

Strategy development guided by 
14 member committee representing 
local service providers and parents.
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Parent Information and Support:

After the IGA
Primary Recommendation: Collaboration will coordinate 
and drive the shared vision and provide the structure for the 
Parent Resource Program.

January 2017: Hired Parent Resource Program Coordinator 
to work with partner agencies to implement the strategic 
framework.

Initial Focus: Develop collaborative strategies and program 
components to improve family access to information, 
resources, and programs.
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Parent Information and Support: 

Driving a Collective Response

Collaboration partner agencies are using the findings and 
recommendations in the report to develop and revise their 
programs.

• Oak Leyden is offering blended playgroups for children 
needing developmental supports and typically 
developing children, which was a major interest 
expressed by parents.

• Oak Park Public Library initiated a book group for new 
moms as a response to expressed parent need for social 
contact. 
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Parent Information and Support:

Driving a Collective Response
• “ Wonder Works Children’s Museum is incredibly proud to be 

a Council member and has found the work the Collaboration 
does to be invaluable. The data the Collaboration has collected, 
on many occasions, has been used in grant proposals…

• …The results from the survey have allowed Wonder Works to 
better understand what parents are concerned about for their 
children and what support they need to feel successful in their 
parenting role. The overall role the Collaboration has in the 
community gives weight to the need for investing in early 
childhood education and at Wonder Works we share the same 
belief and can support our position with the remarkable work 
the Collaboration has done.”
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Parent Information and Support: Impact
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Parent Information and Support: Impact
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Parent Information and Support: 

Plan for Progress
Nurture the Coordinated Intake process with the Village’s new 
Public Health Nurse and three home visiting agencies.

Increase home visiting service levels through the Collaboration 
contract with Easterseals to serve up to 60 families, growing the 
total service level in the Village by at least 30 families.

Implement a Parent Engagement and Leadership Program with 
COFI (Community Organizing and Family Issues) to develop 
voice of parents who are not at any of our tables. Employ 4 
participants as part-time ambassadors to help engage families in 
home visiting and public preschool families.
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Parent information and Support: 

Plan for Progress
Continue to work through partner agencies to fully 
implement Parent Resource Program Strategic Framework 
developed in 2016. 
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Public Preschool Strategy

Goals: 

Ensure that all children meeting eligibility criteria attend a 
high- quality program. 

Develop a professional community among the free preschool 
programs focused on high-quality through use of research-
based curricula, developmentally appropriate instruction, 
and individualized support.  
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Public Preschool Strategy
Promote coordinated intake among programs through 
uniform eligibility criteria and scoring system and use of the 
same developmental screening tool. 

Foster adoption and effective use of Creative Curriculum and 
Teaching Strategies GOLD, a teacher
observation assessment tool, through workshops and 
coaching.
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Public Preschool Strategy

Trained directors at non-District 97 sites on the Charlotte 
Danielson Framework.

Worked with sites to develop parent 
workshop and information about 
the impact of attendance and 
tardiness on establishing 
positive family-school routines.
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Public Preschool Strategy: Impact
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Public Preschool Strategy: Impact
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Public Preschool Program: Next Steps
2017-2018 Pilot of Early Childhood Mental Health Consultation funded partially 
through a grant from the Community Mental Health Board to non-D97 sites. 
Helps teachers address significant social emotional concerns with children.

Support proposal for renewed funding for the Preschool for All programs in 
District 97, The Day Nursery and ABC Toon Town.

Offer training series on early math instruction with Early Math Collaborative at 
Erikson Institute.

Partner with New Teacher’s Center to pilot an equity training series for preschool 
teachers. 

Work with COFI to provide parent leadership and engagement training  and hire  
ambassadors in peer to peer outreach to engage low income families in the 
programs.
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Unified Early Childhood Database

Goals:

To develop a database that draws together all data needed to 
enable monitoring of progress on 11 contractual indicators .

Ensure use of data by staff and committees to inform 
Collaboration work. 
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Benchmarks for Success
• Child Outcomes:

Every child arrives at kindergarten 
safe, healthy, ready to succeed and 
eager to learn

• Service Delivery Outcomes: 
Parents and children receive the 
early childhood care and education 
and parenting information and 
support services they need

• System Outcomes: 
Oak Park has a high-quality, 
coordinated early childhood system 
that aligns with K-12 districts and 
state programs and strategies
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Unified Early Childhood Database Strategy

Create the Unified Early Childhood Database

 Establish partnership – Chapin Hall at the University of 
Chicago. 

 Determine how contractually-defined outcomes will be 
measured.

 Secure data sharing agreements from owners of various 
data sources.

 Integrate data sources to enable long-term study and 

analysis.  Work began July 2014.
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Data Model
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Unified Early Childhood Database: Monitoring Data 

Collection
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Unified Early Childhood Database

• More linked data about children and services for 
longitudinal analyses in one location than any other 
community. 

• Increasing number of partners participating in our efforts 
and contributing to outcomes and data collection. 

• After 3 1/2 years, data sharing agreements between 
Chapin Hall and the Illinois Department of Human 
Services were secured.  

• Data collection by the Collaboration staff and key partners 
continues to improve in accuracy and completeness. 
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Unified Early Childhood Database
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Unified Early Childhood Database: Monitoring Progress 

on Measures
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• Our efforts to build the Unified Early Childhood 
database shed bright light on how vulnerable children 
fall through the cracks of programs and data.  

• We are vigilant about using the data to inform our 
work and to help guide our efforts to make a 
meaningful difference in the lives of our youngest 
children. 

Unified Early Childhood Database
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Early Development Instrument (EDI)

• We were selected to be one of two communities participating in 
a pilot project this year with Erikson Institute.

• The EDI will provide us with a population level picture of how 
well we are supporting our very youngest children.

• Part of the project involves a community scan of Oak Park's 
early childhood environment to identify areas that can affect a 
child's development before they enter kindergarten.

50



Organizational Growth
Board development has included increasing board size and 
diversifying the board by professional background, gender, race 
and ethnicity. Governance, Finance and Development Committees 
meet regularly to guide and monitor board activities. 

Individual donations have grown to targeted levels of $80,000-
$90,000.

Grant seeking is robust.

Communications have increased through monthly newsletters, 
a vibrant and interactive website, and an active 
presence on five social media platforms. 
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Leadership
The Collaboration and Oak Park serve as a model for other 
communities seeking to establish high-quality early childhood 
community systems. This past year we have consulted with 
Evanston, Naperville, and Skokie.

Staff members serve on eight state and regional committees and 
task forces that work to improve services and outcomes for young 
children, including the State Early Learning Council. 

The Collaboration participates in local cross-sector efforts such as 
Success of All Youth and the Oak Park Homelessness Coalition to 
ensure that our youngest children are represented in every aspect 
of our community life. 
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Conclusion
Our infrastructure is in place, we have the momentum to 
drive deeper changes to ensure that each one of our 
youngest residents has a strong start in life. 

Oak Park is recognized for its intentional and innovative  
leadership in fostering a diverse community, committed to 
the success of all of its residents, for acting on the new 
knowledge about the vital importance of building an early 
childhood system of supports around our very youngest 
children. 
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ABSTRACT

The Collaboration for Early Childhood has a 
contract with the Village of Oak Park, Oak Park 
Elementary School District 97 and Oak Park  
River Forest High School District 200 to  develop 
an integrated system of high-quality early 
childhood programs and services to benefit all 
children birth to kindergarten age living in Oak 
Park and River Forest. Data collection and use of 
data are integral to the Contract for Services to 
better understand Oak Park’s and River Forest’s 
youngest children, monitor service delivery and 
usage, and measure impact.

This report provides an preliminary overview of 
the data resulting from a deeper examination of 
the kindergarten class of 2015-2016. The results 
of this work funded by Grand Victoria Foundation 
will help to inform the work of the Collaboration. 
It also provides an addendum to the September 
28, 2017 report to share results of our work to 
support the professional development of the 
early childhood workforce. The indicators for this 
work are on a different data collection schedule 
from the other indicators and so are reported in 
November of each year.  

A historical record of the Collaboration for Early 
Childhood’s measurement and evaluation is  
provided as an appendix for reference. 

Submitted November 28, 2017

REPORT 
TO THE IGA 

GOVERNING 
BOARD
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New Research: Characteristics of the 2015-16 District 97 Kindergarten Cohort

Overview

In November 2016, Grand Victoria Foundation granted $90,000 over two years to the Collaboration for  
Early Childhood. This grant enables us to build on the important work around the development and use of our 
Unified Early Childhood Database. It also enables us to develop our own research agenda by asking deeper 
questions of the data collected based on the local context of our work, and to use the information generated to 
design appropriate and more powerful system responses.

The Measurement and Evaluation Committee determined that the initial research would focus on the  
kindergarten class of 2015-2016, the first year for which we had more robust data. The group decided that  
creating a portrait of this cohort using state and local data would be important to understanding their varied 
experiences prior to entering kindergarten. The second component of the new work focuses on understanding 
how those experiences may be influencing how prepared children are for kindergarten. Below are some  
preliminary findings. While the work is not yet complete (further analyses are underway), a couple of important 
findings are actionable and have resulted in programmatic responses to address the findings. 

Kindergarten 
Enrollment

Oak Park District 97

% Change

2013 to 2014

% Change

2014 to 2015

% Change

2013 to 2015

% Change

2013 to 2016

Kindergarten Students 8.6% 3.5% 12.3% 15.9%

The 2016-17 kindergarten cohort had the following racial composition: 56.6% white, 13.8% African-American, 
13.5% Hispanic, 11.4% Mixed Race, and 4.6% Asian.

Regarding the race/ethnicity composition of the 203 children from families who moved to Oak Park before 
entering kindergarten, the majority were white (53%) while African-American and Hispanics make up  
considerably smaller percentages of that population (15% and 12% correspondingly).
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Poverty
The new state-level administrative data adds an additional perspective to the census figures. For this project, 
Chapin Hall secured the use of Oak Park data from the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program, or SNAP, 
(formerly known as food stamps) and tied this data to District 97 registration data. While we are in the initial 
phase of diving into this new resource, these are some initial findings:

• Nearly one out of every six children - 15% (a total of 97 out of the 633 children in the 2015-16
kindergarten cohort) - come from families that received SNAP benefits at or before the time they
enrolled in kindergarten in District 97.

• 58% of African-American children received SNAP during or prior to their kindergarten enrollment,
compared to 24% of Hispanic and 2% of white children.

• The rate at which African-American children were eligible for Free and Reduced Price Lunch in
kindergarten aligned with the early childhood participation in SNAP benefits. Compared to white
children, African-American and Hispanic children exhibited considerably higher rates of eligibility for free
lunch (compare a 3% among white children to 43% and 21% among black and Hispanics accordingly).
(D97 data)

In-Migration
Chapin Hall has also analyzed the self-reported information families provide about their residential history 
during kindergarten registration.

About 1/3 of all incoming 2015-16 District 97 kindergarten students moved into Oak Park prior  
to entering kindergarten. This seems to be the case for all sub-groups of children, as there were 
no differences in the rate of mobility by race, gender or age in months at kindergarten entry.

Prior Participation in Early Care and Education
Participation in early care and education programs is a critical component of what the Collaboration is  
monitoring to help ensure that children from low-income families access high-quality programs. This data 
comes from District 97 registration data, District 97 Free and Reduced Price Lunch data and state  
administrative data for the Child Care Assistance Program. (CCAP)

• 88% (557 out of a total of 633) of incoming 2015-16 District 97 kindergarten students
had participated in at least one program of early care and education (ECE) prior to
entering kindergarten. (Parent report at kindergarten registration)

• 95% of all white (335 out of 354), 65% of all African-American (62 out of 95), 80% of all Hispanic
(57 out 71), and 91% of all other race/ethnicity (103 out of 113) students had participated in at least one
ECE program prior to kindergarten. (Parent report at kindergarten registration)

Child Care Assistance Program Participation (CCAP)
CCAP provides critical assistance to low-income families (those earning less than 162% of the federal poverty 
level) in helping them afford higher quality and stable child care while they work. It’s important to note that the 
income eligibility level for CCAP child care for the year under study (2015-16) was lower than the prior year 
(185% federal poverty level).

Less than one out of every ten children entering kindergarten during 2015-16 in District 97 would have been 
enrolled in ECE programs paid with CCAP subsidies (only 41 out of the 633 children entering kindergarten in 
2015-16 did). Among the 41 children whose parents did use CCAP to afford paying for child care:

• 71% were African-American, 17% were Hispanic, and there were no white children. (IDHS data)
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Disability Interventions
Understanding the rate and characteristics of children receiving services for developmental delays is important 
as we work to support early learning providers through the referral and screening process. We clearly need to 
see if we can better understand the reasons boys are receiving services at such disproportionate rates through 
the state and school programs. 

• In general, boys are much more likely than girls to be referred and receive interventions for disabilities. 

• Of all children referred and receiving interventions, 80% were boys. Specifically, of the 71 children in 
Early Intervention, 24 in CFC and 57 with a disability diagnoses, 77%, 88% and 81% were  
correspondingly boys. 

• Similar percentages of children by race/ethnicity were referred to the state early intervention system. 
Only Hispanic children had been referred at a higher rate (15% to 11% for white and African-American. 
(IDHS data) 

• More Hispanic children (7%) were also referred to District 97 from Child and Family Connections  
agencies than white (3%) or African-American (5%) children. (D97)

Follow up Questions about the 2015-2016 Kindergarten Cohort
1. Examine early care and learning experiences of children whose families received SNAP benefits.  

Where did they receive services and what services did they receive?
2. Examine where children receiving Child Care Assistance Program benefits received early care and  

learning services.
3. Examine the socio-economic variables and early learning experiences on children’s kindergarten  

preparation and early elementary school performance by analyzing school assessments in kindergarten 
and the early elementary years.

4. Examine the children who were not enrolled in early care and learning programs to determine their  
socio-economic status, see where they were during their early years and if there were other benefits 
they were receiving.

5. Examine children who received Early Intervention services to determine it they continued to receive  
services through early childhood special education as 3-5 year olds and as kindergarteners and first  
graders through special education.

6. Look at qualifying risk factors for Preschool for All and Head Start and determine how many children  
qualified based on developmental delays in two or more domains. 
 

Early Responses to Findings
Launch Parent Engagement and Leadership Project with Community Organizing and Family Issues to find and 
engage hard to reach families. We will foster a parent voice that is not represented at community tables. We 
then plan to identify parent leaders to act as ambassadors and engage in peer to peer outreach to encourage 
enrollment and participation in Head Start, Preschool for All and home visiting programs. Children eligible for 
these programs based on their families’ incomes are underrepresented.

We plan to expand and improve coordinated intake efforts to simplify processes and ensure that social  
services agencies are clear about how to refer children who qualify for Preschool for All, Head Start and home 
visiting programs. Currently, social service agencies and even school personnel are not referring children who 
may qualify for these programs. A recent survey showed that they wanted one number to call (a single point of 
access) and found it burdensome to figure out which program to refer to.

We will be utilizing the data from this research and from measuring progress on our indicators to strengthen 
the Preschool for All re-competition applications.
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System Level Outcome 2: Percent of teachers and directors in Oak Park early childhood 
programs who have above minimum state educational requirements for their role.

Submeasure: Percent of teachers and directors who hold or who increase their level of an 
Illinois Early Childhood Certificate.

Collaboration for Early Childhood Report to the IGA Governing Board, September 27, 2017 6

All survey respondents
2015

#

2016

#

2017

#

2015

Above  
minimum  

requirements

2016

Above  
minimum  

requirements

2017

Above  
minimum  

requirements

Number (%) of directors 24 21 26
15

(63%)

14

(67%)

19

(73%)

Number (%) of assistant 
directors 18 16 6

10

(56%)

10

(63%)
<10

Number (%) of teachers 107 127 125
81

(76%)

95

(75%)

113

(90%)

Number (%) of assistant 
teachers 61 57 75

51

(84%)

52

(91%)

66

(88%)
Number (%) of early  
childhood professionals in 
Oak Park & River Forest 
responding to survey

210 221 232
157

(76%)

171

(77%)

201

(87%)

Calendar Year 2013 

Results Completed by Site Directors*

2014

#

2014

Above minimum 
requirements 20 or more hours

Directors 
21

15

(71%) 13

Teachers
12

8

(67%) 62

Assistant teachers
105

54

(49%) 24

Assistant directors 
63

27

(43%) <10

Number (%) of early childhood professionals in 
Oak Park and River Forest responding to survey

202
104

(52%)

107

(53%)

* The 2013 survey was completed by site directors, which was different from the 2015, 2016 and 2017 self-reported surveys.
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Illinois Early Childhood Credentials 2015 2016 2017
Have submitted a Gateways Credential  
Application

126 people
58%

136 people
59%

142 people
59%

Have a Gateways Illinois Director’s Credential 20 people
Level 1   5%
Level 2   3%
Level 3   1%

21 people
Level 1   5%
Level 2   2%
Level 3   2%

23 people
Level 1   4%
Level 2   2%
Level 3   2%

Have a Gateways Infant Toddler Credential 13 people
Level 2   4%
Level 3   1%
Level 4  0.5%
Level 5   0%

24 people
Level 2   7%
Level 3   2%
Level 4   0.4%
Level 5   2%

23 people
Level 2   5%
Level 3   1%
Level 4   2%
Level 5   1%

Have a Gateways Early Childhood Education 
Credential

48 people
Level 1   7%
Level 2   2%
Level 3   1%
Level 4   2%
Level 5   7%
Level 6   1%

86 people
Level 1   10%
Level 2   3%
Level 3   6%
Level 4   5%
Level 5   13%
Level 6   0.4%

104 people
Level 1   13%
Level 2   4%
Level 3   5%
Level 4   7%
Level 5  12%
Level 6  2 %

Have an Illinois State Board of Education  
Professional Educators License (PEL)

62 people
28%

59 people
25%

63 people
26%

We are going to do additional analysis to determine the change in the subgroup of people who took the survey 
in both 2015, 2016 and 2017. The overall pool of survey participants is not exactly the same year to year.

We met our goal of a 5% increase in survey participants over last year. We saw an increase of 5% over the 
past year and 10% over the past two years.

While we are enthusiastic about the growth in the number of early childhood professionals who have above 
the minimum requirements (from 77% to 87%), we will learn more about the subgroup of those who took the 
survey across years as we perform additional analysis.

The number of early childhood professionals who hold a Gateways Early Childhood Education Credential has 
increased significantly, by 21% in the past year and by 117% in the past two years.

The number of professionals holding a Gateways Infant Toddler Credential has stayed about the same from 
last year, which is an increase of 77% from two years ago. Our continued analysis will determine how many 
people hold both credentials. The Infant Toddler Credential has additional requirements above the Early  
Childhood Education Credential.

Due to the state budget impasse, Professional Development Advisors (PDAs) were not available to assist child 
care providers for the first quarter of this reporting year (until October 2016). As of summer 2017, the PDA 
service from the state was reduced to one person for the entire state (based in Bloomington) from a previous 
staffing level of 35-50 people (based primarily in northern Illinois).

System Level Outcome 2 continued
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System Level Outcome 2 continued

45% of participants who took the survey work at early childhood programs with a Bronze, Silver or Gold  
ExceleRate rating, meaning their programs are committed to continuous quality improvement.  
(Sites with no ratings are usually license-exempt, for instance, faith-based or montessori. ExceleRate green 
indicates a DCFS license only.)

61



Collaboration for Early Childhood Report to the IGA Governing Board, September 27, 2017 9

System Level Outcome 3: Percent of teachers and child care providers reporting more than the state-mandated 15 documented hours 
of continuing professional education each year.

All License 
Categories

Number Less than 15 hours
15-19 
hours 15 hours 16-19 hours 20 or more hours

2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017

Directors 24 21 26 <10 <10 <10 <10 <10 <10 <10 <10 14 14 15

Assistant  
directors 18 16 6 <10 <10 <10 <10 <10 <10 <10 <10 <10 <10 <10

Teachers 107 127 125 29 37 29 30 22 17 25 20 48 43 59

Assistant  
teachers 61 57 75 24 25 33 20 10 <10 <10 <10 17 19 28

Total 210 221 232
63

(30%)
68

(31%)
65

(28%)
59

(28%)
37

(17%)
30

(13%)
34

(15%)
31

(13%)
88

(42%)
82

(37%)
106

(46%)

Licensed Centers Only

Number Less than 15 hours 15 hours 16-19 hours 20 or more hours

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

Directors 19 21 <10 0 <10 <10 <10 <10 14 14

Assistant directors 15 6 <10 0 <10 <10 <10 0 <10 <10

Teachers 109 89 26 16 20 12 24 16 39 45

Assistant teachers 44 57 12 16 <10 <10 <10 <10 19 28

Total 187 173
42

 (22%)
32

(18%)
34

(18%)
23

(13%)
33

(18%)
27

(16%)
78

(42%)
91

(53%)
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Calendar Year 2013 

Results Completed by Site Directors* Number 15 hours 20 or more hours

Directors 21 <10 13

Teachers 105 16 62

Assistant teachers 63 20 24

Assistant directors 12 <10 <10

Number (%) of early childhood professionals in Oak Park  
and River Forest responding to survey 202

42

(21%)

107

(53%)
 *The 2013 survey was completed by site directors, which was different from the 2015, 2016 and 2017 self-reported surveys.

We are going to do additional analysis to determine the change in the subgroup of people who took the survey 
in both 2015, 2016 and 2017.

The minimum requirement for staff at DCFS-licensed centers and homes and at ExceleRate Green sites is 15 
credit hours per year. Staff at centers who have ExceleRate Silver or Gold ratings must have 20 or more credit 
hours per year.

It is encouraging to see a decrease in professionals who met or just exceeded the bare minimum of 15 credit 
hours per year since we are seeing an increase in the number of people who are completing 20 or more credit 
hours. This seems to be a sign that professionals are committing to increase their training more than  
necessary and that even staff at centers that do not have a higher level ExceleRate rating are engaged with 
their professional development. In fact, 21% of professionals have 20 or more in-service hours even though 
they work at programs that do not require this higher level.

Our goal was to increase the number of people who report 16 or more professional development hours by 
15%. Our increase was 18%, exceeding our goal.

72% of professionals met or exceeded the professional development requirement of 15 hours, showing a slight 
increase - from 69% last year and 70% the year prior.

This year, 14% of survey participants used their college coursework hours to meet their DCFS-required 15 
hours of professional development training. This is up from 8% last year.

Of the 242 professionals who attended workshops of any kind this year, 153 (63%) of them attended at least 
one workshop hosted by the Collaboration. In fact, the Collaboration was the sole source of workshops for 92 
professionals who live or work in Oak Park or River Forest.

Our annual Symposium was attended by 384 people, some of whom are also counted in the 242 workshop 
attendees listed above.
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For the first time, we asked what kept people from attending Collaboration workshops. The primary reason  
given was time but many people were also new at their jobs. All the people who said they were too new to  
attend workshops had been employed at their program for less than one year. Of those who were unaware of 
our workshop offerings, most are Teacher Aides and/or work at unlicensed centers without workshop  
requirements. All but one of those who were unaware signed up to receive emails about our professional 
development opportunities in the future. We are able to follow up to make sure people know about our training 
opportunities. It was encouraging to note that topic, location and frequency were not major barriers to  
attending our workshops.

As we saw last year, most staff responding to the survey had been employed by their program for 10 or more 
years (28%) and the distribution of years remained the same, with the next most common time frame being 
less than one year of employment at the same program (14%).

Most of the early childhood professionals who took our survey were teachers (54%) or assistant teachers 
(32%). Professionals in both these roles have a long history of paid experience working with children under 
age five.
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Appendix A: Reporting History

The Collaboration for Early Childhood reports on program activities quarterly through detailed data reports, 
progress reports and financial reports. A complete list of documents from these quarterly meetings is 
available on our website (under Meeting Materials > IGA).
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Now that we have experience with gathering and analyzing the various data sources, our reporting schedule 
follows that in February we present goals for the next year, in May we review financials in preparation for the 
next fiscal year, in September we present the complete, detailed data analysis from the previous school year, 
and in November we present the results of the professional development workforce survey that are on a  
staggered schedule from the school-based data. Complete financial statements and a progress report of  
activities are presented at each quarterly meeting of the IGA and Tri-Board.

Here is a summary of the reporting to date:

Year 1: July 2013 to June 2014

• The Contract for Services began in April 2013.
• The Measurement & Evaluation Committee began in May 2013.
• The Contract with Chapin Hall began in November 2013.

Year 2: July 2014 to June 2015

The reports of May, September & November 2015 cover Years 1 & 2.

• The May 2015 report provided baseline measurements for each of the 11 outcome
measures, using data primarily from the 2013-14 school year.

• In the September 2015 report, the Collaboration proposed program-related action plans
based on what we learned from the baseline measures. We also proposed updated
ways for measuring progress for each outcome, based on new information about the
various data sources.

• The November 2015 report was a special presentation on professional development with
the results of our first workforce survey.

Year 3: July 2015 to June 2016

The reports of February, September & November 2016 cover Year 3.

• The February 2016 report provided the second data point on the outcomes using data
from the 2014-15 school year.

• The September 2016 report provided a third data point in our longitudinal series using
data from the 2015-16 school year. This adjustment to our reporting schedule allowed us
to look at school year data in a more timely manner.

• The November 2016 report was an addendum to September with the results of the
annual early childhood workforce survey.

Year 4: July 2016 to June 2017

The reports of February, September & November 2017 cover Year 4.

• The February 2017 Plan for Progress outlined goals for the next year based on input
from our program committees after the September 2016 report.

• The September 2017 report provided the fourth data point from the outcome measures,
along with a preview of the exciting new analysis of state administrative data that
provides more of a robust demographic profile of the 2015-16 cohort of District 97
kindergarten students.

• This November 2017 report provides additional results of Chapin Hall’s initial analysis of
state administrative data such as SNAP and CCAP integrated with the District 97’s data,
as well as the results of our annual workforce survey that pertain to two of the contract
indicators.

Year 5: July 2017 to June 2018

• The first data report on the 2017-18 school year will be in May 2018.

Appendix A: Reporting History
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Year 1
• The Collaboration’s Measurement & Evaluation committee issued a Request for Proposals based on the 

longitudinal data collection and analysis requirements of the Contract for Services with the jurisdictions. 
Chapin Hall was selected to perform this work, which began in the middle of Year One.

• Extensive discussions were held around the technical requirements of the project - what the database’s 
short and long term needs were, and what was useful to have in-house at the Collaboration versus at 
Chapin Hall.

• The many different data sources that existed in spreadsheet form, or on paper, or with partner  
organizations were all documented, analyzed and brought into alignment.

• Chapin Hall began conversations and negotiations with the Illinois Department of Human Services and 
other state agency representatives to utilize state administrative data for this project.

Year 2
• Baseline measures were established for all outcome measures based on our first year of available data, 

which covered the 2013-14 school year.
• For the first time, we learned about the preschool history of District 97 kindergarteners, thanks to the 

Collaboration’s input on the new early childhood section of the school district’s enrollment form.
• After ramping up the data implementation contract with Chapin Hall, then establishing baseline  

measures, we switched the primary reporting timeframe from May to September. This allowed program 
changes to be made without an additional school year passing by.

• Each Collaboration program committee took a close look at their outcome measures, which had been 
developed prior to the Contract for Services, and made changes to their measures based on the data 
available at the time and nature of their work. The committees also established the first set of progress 
goals for each outcome. The teams involved in this process included the Publicly-Funded Preschool 
committee, the Professional Development committee, the Developmental Screening Committee, and 
the Measurement and Evaluation committee.

• Conversations continued between Chapin Hall and the state for data permissions, which was  
complicated by staff turnover at the state level.

Year 3
• The third data point in the longitudinal analysis provided some trends and some questions that led to 

additional evaluation.
• After almost three years of negotiations, data sharing agreements for state administrative data were 

secured by Chapin Hall, who would finally be able to tie District 97 data with SNAP (Supplemental  
Nutrition Assistance Program), WIC (Women, Infants and Children), Early Intervention, TANF  
(Temporary Assistance for Needy Families) and CCAP (Child Care Assistance Program).

• The state application process for the free/reduced lunch program changed, causing a decrease in the 
number of students deemed eligible. This process was returned to the previous method for the 2017-18 
school year, however, we expect it had an impact on our portrait of low-income students for the 2015-16 
and 2016-17 school years.

• The developmental screening program screened 29% more children from the year prior.
• We transitioned our home visiting program from Parenthesis Family Center (now New Moms) to  

Easterseals.
• We worked closely with District 97 to administer the Kindergarten Readiness Test (KRT) to all children 

in Preschool for All or Head Start, resulting in 90% of students in publicly funded preschools taking the 
KRT.

• The number of families participating in the Collaboration’s voluntary database for outreach information 
increased by 39%.

• The number of child care centers and preschools participating in the state’s quality rating system started 
with 9 in 2013-14 and grew to 24 by June 2016.

• The lack of state budget was a severe hindrance to early childhood professional development offerings, 
and child care providers serving low-income families did not receive timely CCAP payments.The state 
budget impasse also meant long wait times for families needed Early Intervention services.

Appendix B: Measurement & Evaluation Progress Highlights Through the Years
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Year 4
• The recent combination of state administrative data such as SNAP (nutrition subsidies) and CCAP  

(child care subsidies) with local school district data, preschool history, developmental screening and 
more provides a unique and actionable view into the past experiences that shape school readiness.

• Data quality has improved tremendously in both the accuracy of the data collected and the amount we 
have access to (i.e. there was a 74% increase in the number of children who took an important  
preschool assessment due to our diligence with both data collection and coaching/mentoring).

• We are making gains to ensure that children with the highest needs are prioritized for enrollment in  
Preschool for All or Head Start. Part of this commitment means the Collaboration is now the primary 
source of referring families to the PFA/HS program that may fit them best based on our coordinated 
intake and screening process.

• We have data sharing agreements with all three home visiting providers in Oak Park.
• Our developmental screening program screened 13% more children than last year, and we have  

expanded the screening locations to meet more parents where they are.
• Our professional development trainings have finally been able to include unlicensed home child care 

providers.
• We have dramatically increased our outreach work in the community through our Parent Resource 

Program. This outreach is based on feedback from families about what topics of interest they have and 
where they will look for information. Outreach is done in close tandem with our partner agencies like the 
Oak Park Public Library, Wonder Works, and all the primary organizations that serve families with young 
children in our community.

Appendix B: Measurement & Evaluation Progress Highlights Through the Years
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CHILDHOOD CARE AND EDUCATION
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2017 2016
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 922,075$         1,049,121$     
Grants and accounts receivable 56,336             9,245              
Pledge receivable, net 9,378               18,907            
Prepaid insurance 3,305               5,053              
Property and equipment, net 69,001             85,056            

Total Assets 1,060,095$      1,167,382$     

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 134,399$         79,397$          
Accrued payroll liabilities 17,019             16,485            
Refundable advances from funder 118,000           428,000          

Total Liabilities 269,418           523,882          

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 576,163           518,814          
Board designated 134,764           95,100            

Total Unrestricted Net Assets 710,927           613,914          

Temporarily restricted 79,750             29,586            

Total Net Assets 790,677           643,500          

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 1,060,095$      1,167,382$     

3

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.

COLLABORATION FOR EARLY CHILDHOOD CARE AND EDUCATION

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016
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Unrestricted
Temporarily 
Restricted Totals Unrestricted

Temporarily 
Restricted Totals

REVENUES AND SUPPORT
Contributions - individuals, 
 businesses and foundations 152,664$       69,750$          222,414$       126,017$       507$              126,524$      
Government contracts and grants 761,972         -                  761,972         849,540         -                 849,540        
Program service revenue 14,092           -                  14,092           13,235           -                 13,235           
Interest income 2,177             -                  2,177             848                -                 848                
Special event revenue 10,695           -                  10,695           11,712           -                 11,712           
In-kind -                 -                  -                 595                -                 595                
Net assets released from restrictions 19,586           (19,586)           -                 55,000           (55,000)          -                 

Total Revenues and Support 961,186         50,164            1,011,350      1,056,947      (54,493)          1,002,454     

EXPENSES
Program 756,951         -                  756,951         855,100         -                 855,100        
Management and general 90,902           -                  90,902           78,697           -                 78,697           
Fundraising 16,320           -                  16,320           18,049           -                 18,049           

Total Expenses 864,173         -                  864,173         951,846         -                 951,846        

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 97,013           50,164            147,177         105,101         (54,493)          50,608           

NET ASSETS
Beginning of the year 613,914         29,586            643,500         508,813         84,079           592,892        

End of the year 710,927$       79,750$          790,677$       613,914$       29,586$         643,500$      

2016

4

COLLABORATION FOR EARLY CHILDHOOD CARE AND EDUCATION

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.
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Program
Management 
and General Fundraising Totals Program

Management 
and General Fundraising Totals

Salaries 209,166$      34,920$         9,240$          253,326$      194,301$      39,731$         10,408$        244,440$     
Payroll taxes 15,529          2,244             707               18,480          14,962          2,990             748               18,700         
Employee benefits 20,880          1,919             -                22,799          13,277          808                -                14,085         
Depreciation 32,094          3,776             1,888            37,758          26,976          3,126             1,243            31,345         
Dues and subscriptions 125               1,241             -                1,366            -                989                -                989              

2,187            3,662             -                5,849            2,721            144                -                2,865           
Insurance 8,532            3,659             -                12,191          10,466          2,895             -                13,361         
Miscellaneous 1,431            1,605             -                3,036            708               811                -                1,519           
Outside contractors 412,443        29,879           -                442,322        537,047        18,880           -                555,927       
Postage and delivery 995               377                -                1,372            1,371            339                -                1,710           
Printing and production 12,116          1,147             -                13,263          12,801          1,151             595               14,547         

8,930            1,572             -                10,502          7,686            2,113             -                9,799           
Rent 3,600            774                -                4,374            3,287            822                -                4,109           

571               258                -                829               1,449            179                -                1,628           
Staff volunteer development 2,988            658                -                3,646            1,881            552                -                2,433           
Special event -                -                4,485            4,485            -                -                4,808            4,808           
Supplies 18,220          1,222             -                19,442          19,486          2,530             -                22,016         
Telecommunications 7,013            976                -                7,989            5,501            420                247               6,168           

131               1,013             -                1,144            585               217                -                802              
In-kind services -                -                -                -                595               -                -                595              

756,951$      90,902$         16,320$        864,173$      855,100$      78,697$         18,049$        951,846$     

Site rental

Agency advertising

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.
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COLLABORATION FOR EARLY CHILDHOOD CARE AND EDUCATION

STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016

2017 2016

Equipment expense

Program food
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2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
     Change in net assets 147,177$        50,608$        
     Adjustments to reconcile net cash provided by
        (used in) operating activities - 
             Depreciation 37,758            31,345          
             (Increase) decrease in receivables (47,091)          40,370          
             Decrease in pledge receivables 9,529              9,683            
             Decrease in prepaid insurance 1,748              1,073            
             Decrease in advance to subcontractor -                 25,000          
             Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 55,002            (43,507)         
             Increase in accrued payroll liabilities 534                 2,061            
             (Decrease) increase in refundable
                 advances from funder (310,000)        181,744        

                    Net Cash (Used in) Provided by 
                        Operating Activities (105,343)        298,377        

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
      Purchase of property and equipment (21,703)          (20,180)         

                    Net Cash Used in
                        Investing Activities (21,703)          (20,180)         

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH 
      AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (127,046)        278,197        

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -

     Beginning of year 1,049,121       770,924        

     End of year 922,075$        1,049,121$   

SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW INFORMATION
     Cash paid for income taxes -$               -$              

     Cash paid for interest expense -$               -$              

6

COLLABORATION FOR EARLY CHILDHOOD CARE AND EDUCATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Donated Services - The Organization pays for most services requiring specific expertise.
In addition, many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that
assist the Organization with specific assistance programs and various committee
assignments. Donated services were valued at $595 for the year ended June 30, 2016.
There were no donated services recorded for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Cash Flow Information - The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with an
initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.  

Income Taxes - The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under the
provisions of Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Management believes
that it did not engage in any unrelated business activities; thus, no provision for income
tax has been provided for in the financial statements. The Organization's Forms 990,
Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax, are subject to examination by the IRS,
generally for three years after they were filed.

COLLABORATION FOR EARLY CHILDHOOD CARE AND EDUCATION

Nature of Organization - COLLABORATION FOR EARLY CHILDHOOD CARE AND
EDUCATION is a unique public/private partnership whose mission is to promote
strategies to make high quality, affordable early care and education available to all
children from birth to age five, in Oak Park and River Forest. Participants include
representatives of local governing bodies, institutions of higher learning, preschools,
childcare centers, home providers, agencies serving the needs of families with young
children, early childhood policy experts, and community advocates. The Organization is
supported through contracts with Oak Park's governing agencies. Foundation, individual
and corporate gifts also provide significant financial support.

Basis of Presentation - As required by generally accepted accounting principles for not
for profit entities, the Organization is required to report information regarding its financial
position and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets,
temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets. At June 30, 2017
and 2016, the Organization had no permanently restricted net assets.

Use of Accounting Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COLLABORATION FOR EARLY CHILDHOOD CARE AND EDUCATION

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

2017 2016

Furniture and fixtures 871$               871$              
Office equipment 17,818            15,966           
Database 125,117          105,266         
Less accumulated depreciation (74,805)          (37,047)          

Property and equipment, net 69,001$          85,056$         

3. COMMITMENTS

Subsequent Events - The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through
September 15, 2017, the date the financial statements were available.

The Organization leases its facility for $250 a month, under a month to month agreement.
Lease expense was $4,374 and $4,109, respectively, for the years ended June 30, 2017
and 2016.

8

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment are carried at cost or, if donated, at
the approximate fair value at the date of donation. Depreciation is computed using the
straight line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from five to ten
years.  The Organization capitalizes amounts of $500 or greater.

Grants, Accounts Receivable and Pledge Receivable - The Organization considers
grants receivable fully collectible, thus no allowance for doubtful accounts has been
established. Promises are recorded as temporarily restricted support depending on the
nature of any donor restrictions.

Expense Allocation - The costs of providing various programs and other activities have
been summarized on a functional basis in the Statements of Activities and Statements of
Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited.

Reclassifications - Certain amounts in the June 30, 2016 financial statements have been
reclassified to conform to the current presentation.

Balances of major classes of depreciable assets as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, were as
follows (at cost):
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COLLABORATION FOR EARLY CHILDHOOD CARE AND EDUCATION

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016

4. BOARD DESIGNATED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

5. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

2017 2016
Purpose restricted

Database 18,750$          8,750$           

Time restricted 61,000            20,836           

Total temporarily restricted funds 79,750$          29,586$         

6. CONCENTRATION

7. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Board designated unrestricted net assets totaled $134,764 and $95,100 as of June 30,
2017 and 2016, respectively. These funds are to be used for future medical costs and
strategic projects. 

The Organization maintains its cash and cash equivalents at a financial institution. The
balances may, at times, exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant
credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of the following components as of June 30:

Net assets were released from restrictions totaling $19,586 and $55,000 during the years
ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

9

The FASB recently issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue (Topic 606): Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. The ASU provides updated guidance to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers and supersedes most current revenue recognition
guidance. A significant number of nonprofit revenue streams that would be considered
revenue from contracts with a customer may fall within the purview of the ASU. Some of
these include the following: memberships, subscriptions, products or services, royalty
agreements, sponsorships, conferences and seminars, tuition, advertising, licensing, and
federal and state grants and contracts, among others. Contribution revenue is specifically
excluded from the scope of this update. The ASU will need to be applied either
retrospectively to each prior period presented, or retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of initially applying this ASU recognized at the date of initial application. The new
standard will be effective for the Organization's June 30, 2019 financial statements. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COLLABORATION FOR EARLY CHILDHOOD CARE AND EDUCATION

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016

7. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8. GOVERNMENT CONTRACTS AND GRANTS

2017 2016

Village of Oak Park 231,035$        338,100$       
Oak Park Township 10,500            10,400           
Oak Park School District 97 333,717          488,367         
Oak Park School District 200 290,833          425,756         
Park District of Oak Park 6,500              6,500             
Oak Park Library 1,500              1,700             
River Forest Library -                 250                
State of Illinois Department of Public Health 5,887              4,557             
Oak Park Community Mental Health -                 1,910             
Less estimated amount to be refunded (118,000)        (428,000)        

761,972$        849,540$       

10

Contracts with the Village of Oak Park and Oak Park School Districts less amounts
estimated to be repaid amounted to approximately 73% and 82% of total revenues for the
years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Government contracts and grants consisted of the following sources for the years ended
June 30, 2017 and 2016:

In August 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-for-
Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements for Not-for-Profit Entities.
Key elements of the ASU include a reduction in the number of asset categories from
three to two, conforming requirements on releases of capital restrictions, several new
requirements related to expense presentation and disclosure (including investment
expenses), and new required disclosures communicating information useful in assessing
liquidity. The new standard will be effective for the Organization's June 30, 2019 financial
statements. Early adoption is permitted.

79



Per Org.

Net Income per financial statements 265,177.00$             D

New temp restricted funds (69,750.00)$              A

New board designated funds (39,664.00)$              B

Net unrestricted revenue 155,763.00$             

Jurisdiction contribution to net revenue is 

calculated based on share of total revenue 

raised 75.76% C

Unspent contract funds 118,004.59$             

Net assets 643,500.00$             PY FS

Plus Current Year Net Income 265,177.00$             Net Income per FS before return of funds 

Restricted and designated funds (214,514.00)$            Less Restricted and Designated per FS

Unrestricted net assets (Reserve) 694,163.00$             Allowed reserve

Reserve target (25% of $1,496,789 FY17 budget) 374,197.25$             

Based on FY17 Budget

Gap between unrestricted net assets and 

reserve target (319,965.75)$            

Unspent contract funds 118,004.59$             

Amount to to retain to meet reserve target -$                           

Amount to return to jusrisdictions 118,004.59$             118,000.00$       Rounded to nearest thousand.

Contributions from Jurisdictions for year ending 

6/30/17 855,585.00$             Total per QB

Per resolution, Collaboration can retain up to 

11% toward building a 25% (3 month) reserve 0.11

Maximum amount available for reserve 106,975.00$             

A Temp Restricted

Grand Victoria FY18 45,000.00                  

Grand Victoria FY17 portion unspent 18,750.00                  

OPRFCF FY18 6,000.00                    

69,750.00                  

B Board Designated

Chaplin Hall Database 18,664.00                  

Healthcare 9,000.00                    

Legal 12,000.00                  

39,664.00                  

C Total FY17 855,585.00               

Total FY17 Revenues 1,129,350.00            E

D Change in net Assets per FS 147,177.00               

Plus return of funds 118,000.00               

Net income prior to adjustment 265,177.00               

E Total Revenues and Support per FS 1,011,350.00            

Plus return of funds 118,000.00               

Total revenues prior to adjustment 1,129,350.00            

Calculations to determine unspent contract dollars to retain for 

reserve (fiscal year ending 6-30-17).

75.76%
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 6:07 PM
 11/16/17
 Accrual Basis

 Collaboration for Early Childhood

 Balance Sheet
 As of October 31, 2017

Oct 31, 17

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

1100 · Cash

1125 · Community Bank Non-Prof Checkg 35,784.92

1151 · Community Bank Money Mkt (1) 728,838.92

1152 · PayPal 100.00

Total 1100 · Cash 764,723.84

Total Checking/Savings 764,723.84

Accounts Receivable

1600 · Pledge Receivable

1610 · Discounted Pledge Receivable -622.20

1600 · Pledge Receivable - Other 10,000.00

Total 1600 · Pledge Receivable 9,377.80

1500 · Accounts Receivable (3) 3,995.71

Total Accounts Receivable 13,373.51

Other Current Assets

1310 · Prepaid Insurance

1312 · D&O Insurance 451.83

1313 · Gen Liability 1,160.39

1310 · Prepaid Insurance - Other 1,036.94

Total 1310 · Prepaid Insurance 2,649.16

1130 · Charles Schwab Account 25,690.50

1510 · Grants Receivable (2) 45,000.00

Total Other Current Assets 73,339.66

Total Current Assets 851,437.01

Fixed Assets

1400 · Furniture & Fixtures 871.15

1401 · Office & Computer Equipment 17,817.50

1402 · Database Asset 125,117.09

1410 · Less Accumulated Depreciation -74,805.00

Total Fixed Assets 69,000.74

Other Assets

1153 · First NonProfit

1155 · Unemployment Insurance Reserves 1,200.00

1154 · Unemployment Insurance Fund 4,800.00

1156 · First Nonprofit Investment Inc. 316.30

Total 1153 · First NonProfit 6,316.30

Total Other Assets 6,316.30

TOTAL ASSETS 926,754.05

 Page 1 of 3
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 6:07 PM
 11/16/17
 Accrual Basis

 Collaboration for Early Childhood

 Balance Sheet
 As of October 31, 2017

Oct 31, 17

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

2000 · Accounts Payable (4) 16,841.03

Total Accounts Payable 16,841.03

Credit Cards

2160 · Chase Credit Card (5) 3,049.03

Total Credit Cards 3,049.03

Other Current Liabilities

2210 · Return of Unspnt Contract Funds (6) 118,000.00

2120 · Accrued Vacation 4,329.88

2100 · Payroll Liabilities 1,056.75

Total Other Current Liabilities 123,386.63

Total Current Liabilities 143,276.69

Long Term Liabilities

2125 · Lexmark Copier/Printer Lease 851.20

Total Long Term Liabilities 851.20

Total Liabilities 144,127.89

Equity

1140 · Designated Health Insurance 25,000.00

1150 · Board Designated Legal Fund 29,000.00

1160 · Designated Database Funds 70,764.00

1170 · Home Visiting Fund 10,000.00

1110 · Unrestricted Net Assets (R/E) 576,163.50

1502 · Temporarily Restr Net Assets 79,749.95

Net Income -8,051.29

Total Equity 782,626.16

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 926,754.05

Notes:
1. The Money Market Fund increased by $219,000, the amount received from the Village of 
Oak Park, District 97 and District 200 in response to a September Invoice.
2. The Collaboration received the second payment of a two-year grant from the Community 
Foundation. The Grants Receivable line has decreased by $6,000 reflecting the amount 
received. The remaining $45,000 in this account is from a commitment made by Grand 
Victoria Foundation for the period November 2017-2018. The Collaboration should receive 
these funds in December. 
3. Accounts receivable include invoices sent to preschools and child care centers ($0.50 per 
screen) for screening charges and a portion of an online curriculum.
4. Accounts payable include payments owed to contracted services with invoice dates of 
October 31 but paid in November. This includes payments for graphic design, printing, final 
payment on our audit, and professional development services.

 Page 2 of 3
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 6:07 PM
 11/16/17
 Accrual Basis

 Collaboration for Early Childhood

 Balance Sheet
 As of October 31, 2017

Oct 31, 17

Notes continue:
5. The credit card bill received in October is paid in November. These expenditures on the 
card include phone service, storage space rental, a subscription to online curriculum 
resources, email and donor software subscriptions and program and office supplies.
6.  have determined, with the assistance of our auditor, that $118,000 for fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2017 should be returned to the Administrator on the Contract (District 97) for 
deposit in the reserve account. Attached to this Balance Sheet is the calculation for the 
unspent funds related to the Collaboration’s contract with the Village of Oak Park, District 

 Page 3 of 3
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 4:43 PM
 11/10/17
 Accrual Basis

 Collaboration for Early Childhood

 Budget vs. Actual
 July through October 2017

Oct 17 Jul - Oct 17 Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4000 · Public Support

4010 · Individual Contributions (1) 114.33 1,868.99 85,000.00 2.2%

4020 · Foundations 0.00 1,000.00 6,000.00 16.67%

4030 · Corporate Income (2) 500.00 2,500.00 3,000.00 83.33%

4040 · Organizational Donations (3) 0.00 19,000.00 5,000.00 380.0%

4060 · Fees 0.00 0.00 11,120.00 0.0%

4080 · Fundraising Event 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 0.0%

4100 · Grant Income (4) 0.00 0.00 65,000.00 0.0%

Total 4000 · Public Support 614.33 24,368.99 187,120.00 13.02%

4200 · Government Contracts 

4210 · Village of Oak Park (5) 0.00 59,203.00 355,216.00 16.67%

4220 · Oak Park Township 0.00 0.00 10,500.00 0.0%

4230 · District 97 (5) 0.00 85,515.00 513,090.00 16.67%

4240 · District 200 (5) 0.00 74,552.00 447,310.00 16.67%

4250 · Park District of Oak Park 0.00 0.00 6,650.00 0.0%

4260 · Oak Park Library 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.0%

4280 · Illinois Dept of Public Health 0.00 0.00 5,800.00 0.0%

Total 4200 · Government Contracts (6) 0.00 219,270.00 1,340,066.00 16.36%

4800 · Bank Interest 60.66 196.98 750.00 26.26%

4910 · Misc Income (7) 2,309.21 2,524.81 1,500.00 168.32%

4960 · Release of Desig. Database Fund (8) 0.00 0.00 35,000.00 0.0%

4970 · Miscellaneous from Reserve 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.0%

4990 · Temporarily Restricted Net Asst

4991 · Released From Temporarily Restr 0.00 0.00 18,750.00 0.0%

Total 4990 · Temporarily Restricted Net Asst (9) 0.00 0.00 18,750.00 0.0%

Total Income 2,984.20 246,360.78 1,588,186.00 15.51%

Gross Profit 2,984.20 246,360.78 1,588,186.00 15.51%

Expense

5000 · Wages

5001 · Executive Director 7,026.92 28,107.68 91,350.00 30.77%

5002 · Administrator 2,743.46 10,973.84 35,665.00 30.77%

5003 · Prof. Development Coordinator (10) 0.00 9,650.40 54,547.00 17.69%

5007 · Developmental Screening Coordin 4,467.92 17,871.68 58,083.00 30.77%

5008 · Parenting Resource Program Coor 3,919.24 15,676.96 50,950.00 30.77%

5009 · Grants & Contracts Manager 2,682.66 13,413.42 46,500.00 28.85%

5010 · Outreach Worker 0.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.0%

5005 · Payroll Expenses-Taxes 1,594.27 8,220.27 28,560.00 28.78%

5006 · Employee Benefits 1,262.76 9,027.92 43,119.00 20.94%

Total 5000 · Wages 23,697.23 112,942.17 433,774.00 26.04%

5100 · Contracted Services

5115 · Home Visiting Program (11) 20,901.10 64,937.87 398,000.00 16.32%

 Page 1 of 3
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 4:43 PM
 11/10/17
 Accrual Basis

 Collaboration for Early Childhood

 Budget vs. Actual
 July through October 2017

Oct 17 Jul - Oct 17 Budget % of Budget

5110 · Training Specialist (12) 17,263.00 25,113.00 45,000.00 55.81%

5130 · Bookkeeper 609.50 2,886.50 12,500.00 23.09%

5140 · Outreach Worker 0.00 385.00 0.00 100.0%

5180 · Coordinated Intake Consultant (13) 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.0%

5170 · Donor Development 1,440.00 5,420.00 15,000.00 36.13%

5175 · Parent Support (14) 0.00 0.00 180,000.00 0.0%

5210 · Program Facilitators 0.00 0.00 11,000.00 0.0%

5215 · Database Development/Analyst (15) 0.00 0.00 160,000.00 0.0%

5220 · Accounting/Audit (16) 3,500.00 9,180.00 13,000.00 70.62%

5230 · General Consulting 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.0%

5245 · Compu Consultant/Tech Support 47.50 47.50 6,000.00 0.79%

5250 · Legal Fees 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 0.0%

5270 · Audiology Technician (17) 1,379.40 1,379.40 16,000.00 8.62%

5275 · Data Management 3,193.00 8,463.00 31,000.00 27.3%

5280 · Web Development and Maintenance 760.00 1,600.00 11,000.00 14.55%

5285 · Graphic Design (18) 1,365.00 2,165.00 7,000.00 30.93%

5290 · Communications 570.00 1,890.00 35,000.00 5.4%

Total 5100 · Contracted Services 51,028.50 123,467.27 972,500.00 12.7%

5300 · Insurance

5315 · Dishonesty Assurity 37.71 152.43 500.00 30.49%

5314 · Volunteer Accident Insurance 35.00 140.00 475.00 29.47%

5305 · General Liability 492.46 3,447.26 10,880.00 31.68%

5310 · Directors and Officers 126.17 504.68 2,200.00 22.94%

5312 · Workers Comp Insurance 89.67 843.51 3,300.00 25.56%

5313 · Unemployment Insur Prg Fees 186.75 373.50 2,760.00 13.53%

Total 5300 · Insurance 967.76 5,461.38 20,115.00 27.15%

5500 · Operating Expenses

5511 · Childcare for Programs 0.00 50.00 0.00

5501 · Service Charges 0.00 40.41 350.00 11.55%

5503 · Program or Workshop Supplies 391.70 1,197.64 16,000.00 7.49%

5504 · Program Food (19) 1,291.70 1,780.72 14,000.00 12.72%

5505 · Office Supplies 57.17 361.60 4,500.00 8.04%

5506 · Site Rental (20) 135.00 365.00 2,500.00 14.6%

5508 · Office Equipment 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.0%

5509 · Payroll Processing 14.00 71.75 300.00 23.92%

Total 5500 · Operating Expenses 1,889.57 3,867.12 40,150.00 9.63%

6100 · Telephone/Telecommunications

6101 · Telephone 409.35 1,839.45 6,000.00 30.66%

6103 · Webhosting (21) 0.00 0.00 3,750.00 0.0%

6105 · Internet 0.00 254.70 2,200.00 11.58%

Total 6100 · Telephone/Telecommunications 409.35 2,094.15 11,950.00 17.52%

6201 · Postage and Delivery 73.04 434.64 1,500.00 28.98%

6250 · Printed/Online Materials

 Page 2 of 3
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 4:43 PM
 11/10/17
 Accrual Basis

 Collaboration for Early Childhood

 Budget vs. Actual
 July through October 2017

Oct 17 Jul - Oct 17 Budget % of Budget

6251 · Printing/Film Development (22) 1,425.03 1,695.83 18,000.00 9.42%

6252 · Subscriptions & Dues (23) 50.00 2,500.30 1,500.00 166.69%

Total 6250 · Printed/Online Materials 1,475.03 4,196.13 19,500.00 21.52%

6290 · Rent 351.00 1,154.00 7,500.00 15.39%

6291 · Computer Hardware & Software 69.00 276.00 5,000.00 5.52%

6300 · Staff Volunteer Development

6310 · Staff/Volunteer Travel 36.28 254.80 5,500.00 4.63%

6320 · Staff/volunteer Training 0.00 136.40 5,000.00 2.73%

6340 · Staff/Volunteer Recognition 0.00 118.01 600.00 19.67%

Total 6300 · Staff Volunteer Development 36.28 509.21 11,100.00 4.59%

6400 · Licenses and Filing Fees 0.00 10.00 250.00 4.0%

6500 · Agency Advertising 0.00 0.00 3,500.00 0.0%

6600 · Special Event Costs 0.00 0.00 7,000.00 0.0%

6900 · Miscellaneous Expense 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.0%

Total Expense 79,996.76 254,412.07 1,536,839.00 16.55%

Net Ordinary Income -77,012.56 -8,051.29 51,347.00 -15.68%

Other Income/Expense

Other Expense

7200 · Capital Expense 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.0%

Total Other Expense 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.0%

Net Other Income 0.00 0.00 -5,000.00 0.0%

Net Income -77,012.56 -8,051.29 46,347.00 -17.37%
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Collaboration for Early Childhood 
Budget to Actual Comparison Report October 31, 2017 

Notes 
 

 

 

1. Our individual donor campaign kicked off on November 6. We expect to see significant 

revenue during November and December from this effort. 

2. Corporate donation is from Forest Park National Bank for the 2018-19 Resource Directory. 

3. Organizational donations include a contribution from proceeds from the Good Life Race from 

the Oak Park Runners Club ($17,000) and a donation from the League of Women Voters 

($2,000). 

4. Grant income in the amount of $6,000 from the Community Foundation will be recorded in 

November. We will receive $45,000 from Grand Victoria in December for the second payment 

on a two-year grant. 

5. The payments from the Village, Districts 97 and 200 are now reeived after invoices submitted 

six times per year. The first invoice was not issued until October upon the completion of the 

audit for 2017 and the reconciling of unspent contract funds from the previous fiscal year. The 

invoice the second and third payments was issued in November and those revenues will be 

shown on the November 2017 invoice.  

6. Contributions from the other governing bodies will be received at budgeted amounts 

according to a schedule over the next 5 months. 

7. Miscellaneous includes donations from Goedert Center for hearing and vision screenings, as 

well as payments for ASQ developmental screenings. 

8. The release of database funds will occur at the end of the fiscal year 

9. Release of Temporarily restricted funds ($18,750) occurs in November upon completion of the 

first phase of the work related to the Grand Victoria Foundation grant.  

10. The Professional Development position opened in September. The position is being 

reconfigured to respond to the changes in the professional development needs of the early 

childhood workforce. Consultants are providing the services while the position is under review 

and filled.  

11. The expenditures for the home visiting contract do not reflect the October invoice. These 

invoices are always paid the month after services are provided. 

12. Expenditures for the Training Specialists will run higher this year as consultants fulfill the tasks 

related to the Professional Development Coordinator until the position is filled. 

13. Village’s Public Health Nurse began work on Coordinated Intake for home visiting in 

September. Invoices will occur quarterly.  

14. Expenditures for the parent support program will begin to show in January. Work related to a 

contract with COFI for $25,000 began in October and we will receive voices quarterly. Initial 

payment will occur in January 2018.  

15. Payments to Chapin Hall for Database Development and Data Analysis are made quarterly. An 

invoice for the first quarter had not been received by October 31. We did receive an invoice in 
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November and the amount of the invoice for the period July 1 2017 – September 2017 was 

$56,252.28. 

16. Most of the expenses related to accounting audit are for the 2016-2017 audit.  

17. Hearing and Vision Screening began in September. The expenditures shown are for September 

only. October invoice is paid in November.  

18. The graphic designer completed multiple projects in October including the Symposium logo, 

home visiting material, and Parent Resource Program information cards. 

19. Program food includes three trainings held in October, a parent committee meeting, 

reimbursement for the September Council meeting, and the October Physicians Network 

Breakfast. 

20. This line reflects the cost of renting space from Dominican University for the Physicians 

Network Breakfast. 

21. Quarterly invoices for hosting and maintaining the website for the Collaboration’s direct 

service database (CiviCRM) have not been received as of October 31, 2017. The amount for 

each quarterly invoice is $450.00. 

22. Printing costs include the end of year appeal letters and envelopes, home visiting and 

coordinated intake materials, and flyers for the upcoming Community Conversation. 

23. The total in this line includes the purchase made in September of a Teaching Strategies Gold 

online subscription for the publically funded preschool programs. District 97 has been invoiced 

for a portion of the cost. 
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Memo 

To:  Oak Park Village Board, District 97 Board of Education and District 200 Board of 

Education 

From:  Carolyn Newberry Schwartz, Executive Director, Collaboration for Early Childhood 

Subject: Unspent Contract Revenue 

Date: November 17, 2017 

Annual expenditures thus far have been lower than projected when the Collaboration for Early 

Childhood, the Village and Districts 97 and 200 entered into a Contract for Early Childhood Educational 

Services in 2013. The Early Childhood Working Group that developed the IGA and the contract 

understood that the work and the costs to fully establish the system of early childhood services would 

be subject to variables that could not be anticipated, especially at the outset of the contract when the 

entire system was under development. Over the past four years we have increased our understanding of 

the service needs across the early childhood system. We have also launched important initiatives this 

past year to ensure that families eligible to receive specific services are found and engaged in programs.  

 

Recognizing the temporary surplus of contracted revenues vs. expenses, unspent contract funds have 

been returned to the IGA Administrator (District 97) per the requirements prescribed in the Contract, 

Article 3, Section 2. A new invoicing procedure has also been implemented to better align the payment 

of contracted revenues with expenses, both currently and as program implementation and expenses 

reach their full anticipated level.  

The timeline for the ramping up or full development of the early childhood system was ambitious. The 

scope and cost of the project as described in the contract continue to be on target. We do expect to be 

fully expending budgeted funds within the next one to two years. The conditions and reasons behind the 

lower expenditures to date include the following: 

1. The original multi-year budget assumed a contract approval date of November 2012. The 

contract was signed in April 2013. This in turn resulted in contracts being issued to important 

vendors later than originally anticipated. The net result was a significantly lower rate of 

expenditures than planned for Year One and a subsequent lowering of expenses over the 

ensuing years as the implementation lag had a cumulative impact affecting staff hiring and 

related service levels.   

 

2. Fiscal year 2014-2015 and 2015-2016 programs were significantly impacted by the lack of a 

State budget which affected referrals and consequently staffing needs. This was felt most 

acutely in the lack of a contract between the Village and the State for Nurse Family Case 

Management services. 

 The Village recently hired a Public Health Nurse to perform the Nurse Family Case 

Manager function when it receives a contract from the State. That contract was not 

issued for 2016-2017 but the Village anticipates receiving the contract for fiscal year 

2018. 
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3. The 2014 gubernatorial election and change in administrations led to a slowing of work around 

the Data Sharing Agreements with the State. The delay resulted in significant database related 

expenses being lower than anticipated for fiscal years 2013-2014, 2014-2015 and 2015-2016.  

Much of the expense that we anticipated, however, has been deferred, not eliminated.  

 With agreements now in place, the scope of work for Chapin Hall has increased and the 

budget for the work is very large this year. We expect it to remain on track for the 

following years.  

 

4. The decision to change the parent information and support strategy to achieve greater long-

term growth and stability resulted in lower expenditures than planned for fiscal years 2015-2016 

and 2016-2017.  

 Three home visiting programs are now working together on outreach and have agreed 

to a single point of entry for home visiting services through the Village’s Public Health 

Nurse. This will enable us to know the capacity of each agency to provide model fidelity 

home visiting services and the extent to which there are openings in each program. 

Importantly, research has shown that coordinated intake processes decrease 

competition among agencies and result in greater numbers of families engaging in 

services due to increases in cooperation between providers and referring agencies. We 

expect that the need to continue to fund home visiting programs through the 

Collaboration’s contract will grow over the next two years as we work to achieve 

capacity. 

 A new Parent Resource Program Coordinator was hired in January 2017. The program, 

designed to provide a continuum of support for all families, is growing and we expect 

expenditures to meet budgeted levels as the program components are put into place.  

 The Parent Engagement and Leadership Program we are initiating with Community 

Organizing and Family Issues (COFI) this fall will help us to identify key parent leaders 

who we plan to hire as peer ambassadors to help find, encourage and engage families 

that meet eligibility criteria for the home visiting programs. 

 

It is important to recognize that the Collaboration benefits from the expertise and time of many 

volunteers who contribute to our work. Each strategy is led by volunteer professionals backed by a staff. 

We expect the next 18 -24 months to be important months in the development of the early childhood 

system of services contemplated in the contract. The components and leadership positions for each 

strategy are clearly defined and in place. We forecast that the growth in the key program activities 

described in this memo and the demands of back office support and administrative leadership will 

require the original budget expenditure plan developed in 2012-2013.  
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IGA Progress Report  
7/1/16 -6/30/17  

  
  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: Highlights from FY 2017 
 

FY 2017 was a year of extraordinary program growth and organizational development at the 
Collaboration for Early Childhood. Major strides were made in building the comprehensive 
system of integrated high-quality early learning programs envisioned by our founders and 
restated in our newly worded mission statement.  
 
Creation of New Parenting Resource Program A major accomplishment in 2017 was the 
redesign of the Parenting Resource Program (PRP). A needs assessment conducted in the spring 
of 2016 provided the foundation for the development of strategies for improving access to 
information on child development, early childhood resources, and child-centered activities for 
parents and child development professionals. The first step in restructuring the program was to 
hire a full-time Parent Resource Coordinator in February who will coordinate the expanded 
agenda.  
 
Steady Growth of Early Detection Screening The developmental screening program, now in 
its third year, continues to grow, screening more pre-k children every year. A record number of 
pre-k children were screened in FY 2017 for vision, hearing, developmental progress and social-
emotional well-being at child care centers and homes and preschools, and, now, the River Forest 
Public Library and Wonder Works Children’s Museum. The steady growth in the reach of this 
program is due in large part to the efforts of our Developmental Screening Coordinator whose 
responsibilities include educating providers and parents on the importance of early detection and 
helping the former set up developmental screening programs. Notable progress was also made in 
tracking post-screening referrals and linkages by improving provider follow-up documentation.  

 
Preliminary Screening for PreKindergarten Partnership The Collaboration now conducts 
preliminary screening for the PKP program at Longfellow School. By screening families for 
PKP, the Collaboration helps ensure that the most at-risk children in the Village are able to avail 
themselves of this quality early education resource. The Collaboration’s role as the entry point 
for PKP also provides meaningful support to District 97.    
 
Engagement of License-Exempt Providers We have, for the first time, made contact with 42 of 
the previously unknown license-exempt providers in the Village (family, friends and neighbors 
who provide child care in the home) thanks to a data-sharing agreement with Illinois Action for 
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Children, which gives us unprecedented access to their contact information. The significance of 
this development cannot be understated. There are more license-exempt providers in Oak Park 
and River Forest than all of the licensed child care centers and homes and preschools combined. 
As such, they have a considerable influence on the school readiness of a substantial number of 
our pre-k children. Our Early Childhood Consultant began to engage these providers in a variety 
of professional development activities this summer.  

 
Selection for the Early Development Instrument Pilot Project The Collaboration was one of 
four Illinois communities selected by the Erikson Institute as a site for their ground-breaking 
Early Development Instrument Pilot Project (EDI). EDI will map children’s development and the 
early childhood environment in Oak Park in order to “identify needs and strengths to promote 
more targeted interventions, equitable distribution and alignment of resources.” Executive 
Director Carolyn Newberry Schwartz is the point person for the Collaboration on this initiative, 
which will involve leading and coordinating the effort with D97 Superintendent Carol Kelley.  
 
Building of the Unified Early Childhood Database There have been several noteworthy 
advancements in the development of the Early Childhood Database. We have secured major 
data-sharing agreements with the State of Illinois (for CCAP, EI, SNAP, TANF and WIC 
administrative data), several non-profit agencies, and District 97, which will allow us to create a 
more complete profile of our youngest children. We have raised private funding for the project 
through a $90,000 multi-year grant from the Grand Victoria Foundation. The funds will enable 
us to conduct an in-depth analysis of school readiness by examining the impact of several 
different variables on school readiness such as participation in Preschool for All (PFA) and Early 
Intervention as well as race and income. In terms of the longitudinal study, we now have four 
data points and are beginning to detect trends and identify patterns. 
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DETAILED ACTIVITY BY PROGRAM AREA 
 
Developmental Screening  
 
Screenings The developmental screening program experienced an exponential increase in the 
number of children reached for developmental, social-emotional, hearing and vision screenings: 

• 30 sites (17 child care centers and preschools, 9 family child care providers, 1 social 
service agency, and 3 medical practices) participated in the developmental screening 
program.  

• 1,806 children received either a developmental or a social-emotional screen, a 13.8% 
increase in children screened from FY 2016, exceeding the 7% increase projected. 

• 1,726 children received a developmental screen, a 14.5% increase from FY 2016.  
• 1,604 children received a social-emotional screen, a 22.4% increase from FY 2016.  
• 1,353 children received a hearing screening at 38 child care and preschool sites, an 8% 

increase from FY 2016. 
• 1,411 children received a vision screening at 38 child care and preschool sites, a 7.6% 

increase from FY 2016. 
 
Training and Support Our Developmental Screening Coordinator continued to provide training 
and support for sites	  participating in the screening program.   

• 8 staff from 3 new participating sites received 15 hours of training on how to implement a 
successful screening program. 

• 120 hours of mentoring on program implementation was provided to 3 new sites (up to 6 
hours each per month), 27 existing sites (up to 4 hours each per month), and 3 medical 
practices (up to 15 hours of technical support each per month). 

• 43 early childhood providers from 21 sites attended 5 workshops on the referral process 
for Early Intervention and Early Childhood Special Education Services and how to 
support children with delays in the classroom.  

• 30 pediatricians and family medical professionals attended a Physicians Network 
Breakfast meeting on sensory processing and 33 attended a second breakfast on gender 
identity.  

 
Assessments and Referrals Participating sites have improved in making referrals for additional 
assessments or services when indicated after a developmental screening and in recording their 
actions in the Ages and Stages Questionnaire (ASQ) database. A total of 47 children were 
referred for additional assessments. Ninety percent of participating sites now record their follow 
up activities. We have received information from 24 parents (53%) confirming that their child 
was assessed and received treatment, if indicated, for vision and 9 parents (60%) reported that 
their child’s hearing was assessed and received treatment, if indicated. Additionally: 

• 22 children were referred to Early Intervention (EI) for an assessment, up from 17 in FY 
2016. 

• 11 children were referred to Early Childhood Special Education in Districts 97, 90 and 
other area school districts as appropriate.   
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• 14 children were referred to physicians and private service providers for developmental 
assessments and 60 children were referred for hearing or vision assessments.  

 
Parent Information and Support 
 
Restructuring the Program The Parenting Resource Program (PRP), previously housed at 
Parenthesis Family Center, was absorbed into the Collaboration and revamped in FY 2017. The 
framework for the reimagined program began in May and June 2016 with a needs assessment 
conducted through electronic surveys of Oak Park and River Forest parents and early childhood 
professionals, parent focus groups, and professional interviews. Parent respondents indicated an 
eagerness to connect with other parents, bemoaned their lack of access to parenting resources, 
and expressed an interest in learning more about social-emotional and cognitive development 
and discipline. The professionals who responded identified the need for service coordination and 
collaboration and communicated an interest in offering more education, support and activities for 
parents. Recommendations included the hiring of a PRP Coordinator to be housed at the 
Collaboration and Jennifer Little was hired for the position in February. A 7-member Parent 
Resource Committee was assembled to plan activities and coordinate resources. In its brief 
existence, PRP has accomplished the following: 
 
Communications Improved communications with parents 

• Developed a communication strategy to reach more families and providers through web 
development, Twitter, frequent postings on Facebook, Instagram and Pinterest 

• Promoted the Week of the Young Child in April through online communication, social 
media and the distribution of 1,500 flyers 

• Launched a Kindergarten Readiness Awareness Campaign in August, sharing 
information on school registration and tips for making a smooth transition, through online 
communication, social media and the June Collaboration e-newsletter. 

 
Outreach in the Community Increased outreach efforts and dissemination of information for 
parents, both online and at community events. 

• Produced and distributed 750 summer information outreach cards with summer activity 
ideas 

• Created a playgroup page on the website, providing a forum for connecting with other 
parents and a resource for finding playgroups 

• Created a scholarship page on the website to disseminate information about free and 
reduced fee activities and programs and those that offer scholarships 

• Distributed information on early childhood at A Day in Our Village in June and Barrie 
Fest and Oaktoberfest in September.   

 
Survey Follow-Up Conducted 2 follow-up surveys to ascertain how and where parents acquire 
information on parenting and how often they search for information on early childhood programs 
and activities. The surveys also helped identify parents interested in leading playgroups and 
serving on the Collaboration’s parent committee. 
 
New Coordinated Intake Process for Home Visiting In December 2016, the Collaboration 
signed a contract with the Oak Park Department of Public Health to establish a coordinated 
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intake system for the three home visiting programs operating in Oak Park -- Easterseals, the 
Collaboration’s home visiting subcontractor, Hephzibah Children’s Association, and New 
Moms. Studies show that simplifying intake for home visiting programs by centralizing the 
intake process increases referrals for all programs. The contract stipulates that the Village of Oak 
Park’s Nurse Family Case Manager, hired in June, will be the sole point of contact for all home 
visiting program referrals and will conduct preliminary screening for program applicants. We 
believe that the new process will reduce confusion about to whom referrals should be made and 
help improve the rate of referrals from social service agencies.  
 
Easterseals, our subcontractor for Partnering with Parents, reports the following 
accomplishments over the past 12 months: 

• Hired and trained 2 full-time parent educators 
• Received 46 referrals  
• Completed 395 home visits 
• Actively engaged 19 new families, for a total of 26 families participating in the program 

by the end of the fiscal year. Four families discontinued service primarily due to work 
schedule conflicts and moving outside the community. Families referred to the program 
due to developmental concerns at birth often cited frequent medical appointments and 
conflicting work schedules as reasons for nonparticipation, reducing the uptake rate.   

• Held 13 Group Connections to promote socialization of the children and increase social 
connections and parent knowledge about important early childhood milestones 

• Extended program eligibility from 36 months to 48 months 
• Provided a 6-week parenting workshop for 4 families with 5 children 
• Provided 2 playgroups for 10 families, including 7 fathers. 

 
 
Professional Development 
 
Progress on professional development goals and objectives for the year were impeded by the 
state budget impasse, which reduced state-supported training and created instability in the Child 
Care Assistance Program. As a result, staff turnover increased as child care enrollment declined. 
 
License-Exempt Providers For the first time, we have made contact with license-exempt 
providers (family, friends and neighbors who provide child care), a group of providers to whom 
we previously had no access,	  thanks to a data-sharing agreement with Illinois Action for 
Children. This is a major development as there are more license-exempt providers in Oak Park 
and River Forest than licensed ones. By June, the Collaboration had engaged 22 of the 42 
license-exempt providers who receive state child care subsidies.  
 
Annual Symposium 384 early childhood teachers, developmental therapists, teaching assistants, 
directors, and early elementary school teachers attended 30 workshops at the Collaboration’s 
14th Annual Symposium, “Here and Now: Respecting Childhood,” on February 25th. Luis 
Hernandez, MA, education specialist, author, and speaker, delivered the keynote address, “The 
Fire Within: Rekindling Our Professional Passion.” Attendees earned up to 5.5 professional 
development hours, approved by Early Intervention, ISBE, and the Gateways Registry. 
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Workshops 133 early childhood staff from 31 child care centers and 24 child care homes 
attended the Collaboration professional development trainings.  
 

• One hundred and twelve early learning professionals attended 20 workshops on “Project 
Social-Emotional: Using Project-Based Learning to Promote Social-Emotional 
Competence.” Attendees earned 2 hours of professional development credit for each 
workshop.  

• Forty-three early childhood providers attended one or more intervention-specific 
trainings. The following trainings were offered: Social-Emotional/Behavioral 
Development: The Top 5 Things Children Wish Their Early Childhood Teachers Knew; 
Sensory Integration and Its Impact on Social-Emotional Development; Moving From 
What’s Wrong with This Kid to What’s Happened to This Kid: Effective Responses 
When You Recognize Trauma in Your Classroom, and You Don’t Have to Be a 
Therapist to be Therapeutic. 

 
Coaching 200 hours of coaching on integrating social-emotional learning objectives into the 
curriculum using a project-based learning approach were provided at 6 child care centers and 4 
child care homes. 

Roundtables An average of 12 child care directors and 10 family child care providers 
participated in bi-monthly roundtables sponsored by the Collaboration for 2 hours of Gateways 
Registry approved professional development credit. Topics for the 5 director’s roundtables were: 
What’s New: Policies That Impact Your Business; Stop Thinking about It and Leap into a 
Higher Circle of Quality; Multi-Tiered System of Supports: Improving Outcomes for All 
Children; Implementing a Program-Wide Model of Response to Intervention in Early Childhood 
Settings; and Professional Development. Topics for the 5 family child care provider roundtables 
were identical to the director’s roundtable topics except for the final one which was Taking Care 
of You: Self-Care for the Family Child Care Professional.  

Family Child Care Credentials Three licensed family providers received the new Family Child 
Care Credential (FCC) with assistance from our Professional Development Coordinator. The 
FCC, unveiled in July 2016, is the first step that family child care providers need to complete in 
Illinois’ ExceleRate Quality Rating and Improvement System.  
 
Public Preschool Coordination 
 
Intake for PKP In an effort to strengthen the intake process in D97’s PreKindergarten 
Partnership (PKP) program and increase program participation for the most at-risk children, D97 
asked the Collaboration to conduct preliminary intakes for the program. As a result, the number 
of intakes conducted by the Collaboration more than doubled in FY 2017 to 186 from 83 in FY 
2016.  
 
Head Start The Collaboration provides additional professional support for Oak Park’s Head 
Start teachers. In FY 2017, our Early Childhood Consultant:    

• Conducted 8 hours of classroom observation and led 8 hours of post-observation 
discussion with Head Start staff, tying classroom reflections to social-emotional 
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development and the Project Approach. Administered a pre and post social-emotional 
questionnaire after training and coaching to facilitate the reflection process 

• Provided 6 hours of coaching on the use of the Teaching Strategies GOLD Fidelity Tool 
for Administrators and Teachers and developed a worksheet to use at weekly staff 
meetings. (Teaching Strategies GOLD is an observation-based assessment tool for 
evaluating individual child development.) 

• Completed the Administrator’s Fidelity Checklist for one classroom, reviewed and 
discussed the results with the teachers, and helped them compile documentation for their 
Continuous Quality Improvement Plans.  

  
Support for Preschool for All Programs 

• Promoted the use of Teaching Strategies GOLD’s assessment system to increase the 
number of complete records 

• Provided coaching and training to the OPRF Day Nursery and ABC Toon Town on 
implementing project-based learning and the Creative Curriculum, tying lessons to 
specific Early Learning Standards including social-emotional standards 

• Hosted a “Lunch and Learn In” for the staff at the OPRF Day Nursery to help them 
prepare for the new school year. 

 
Unified Early Childhood Database  
  
The Collaboration has made significant progress on the complicated and lengthy process of 
building a Unified Early Childhood Database, thanks to a 2-year $90,000 grant from the Grand 
Victoria Foundation.  
 

• Laid the groundwork for a profile of Oak Park and River Forest children under 5 by 
securing data-sharing agreements with the State of Illinois for CCAP, EI, SNAP, TANF 
and WIC administrative data. Chapin Hall is currently in the process of formatting the 
data from these programs for the project’s database requirements. When the formatting is 
complete, Chapin Hall will be able to overlay participation in these programs with 
enrollment in Preschool for All and Head Start to begin to explain the early childhood 
experiences of at-risk children who enroll in District 97.  

• Improved our in-house capacity to run reports and create graphics that translate the data 
collected into actionable information for program committees and staff 

• Renewed data sharing agreements with District 97 and Hephzibah, and negotiated a new 
agreement with New Moms (formerly, Parenthesis). These agreements ensure that the 
Unified Early Childhood Database will have the data needed for the longitudinal data 
study.  

• Produced three major reports:  
o The September 2016 Report to the IGA Governing Board presented a third data 

point on 9 of the 11 outcome measures delineated in the IGA contract.  
o The November 2016 Report to the IGA Governing Board presented findings on 

the remaining 2 outcome measures, which are on a different reporting schedule 
due to the timing of our annual survey of the early childhood professional 
workforce.  
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o The 2017 Plan for Progress was developed using the targets and activities 
established using the outcome measures from these reports. 

 
• Expanded the size and qualifications of the Data Committee, adding new members with 

expertise in data collection and analysis. 
 

Organizational Growth and Visibility  
  

• Collaboration staff served on numerous state committees focused on early childhood 
issues, professional development, developmental screening, community systems 
development, and systems integration and alignment.  

• A part-time grants and contracts manager was hired to improve our ability to secure new 
sources of funding and to support written communications including reporting.   

• Internet communications increased through monthly e-newsletters, more frequent 
Facebook posts, and new Twitter and Instagram accounts.  

• Mission, values and vision statements were revised to accurately reflect and succinctly 
communicate the work we do. The new version is attached. 
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GOALS AND OBJECTIVES FOR FY 2018 
 
Developmental Screening  

• Increase the number of children screened by 5% 
• Add 2 new child care programs, 2 medical practices and 2 community service 

organizations to the screening program 
• Increase the number of completed screens by including the screening consent form in 

center and preschool enrollment packets  
• Improve the documentation of follow-up activities by making the developmental 

screening online system more user-friendly and sending email reminders 
• Host 2 breakfast seminars for pediatricians and other medical providers 
• Continue to provide technical support and consultation to participating sites 
• Continued to coordinate outreach and provide information to families on the value of 

early detection screening 
• Continue to offer developmental screening program implementation training for 

participating sites 
• Continue to explore and increase the use of online and hybrid training modules for 

developmental screening  
• Continue to work with Early Intervention, Early Childhood Special Education, and 

school districts to align programs and ensure that children referred for additional testing 
and services receive them. 

 
Parent Information and Support  
 
Home Visiting 

• Increase identification and enrollment of eligible families by changing outreach 
strategies, from phone calls and snail mail to drop-bys and offering office visits in lieu of 
home visits  

• Hire at least one additional parent educator 
• Strengthen referral relationships with other agencies in the community 
• Increase visibility in the community by marketing Group Connections to families not 

currently in the program 
• Produce a monthly parent newsletter 
• Increase father involvement  
• Improve staff support, training and professional development.  

  
Parenting Resource Program 

• Stage an Early Childhood Resource Fair 
• Improve parent engagement in Collaboration sponsored and supported activities  
• Increase parent participation in the voluntary database  
• Increase communication and outreach	  by improving our calendar format and capabilities. 
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Professional Development 

 
Provide professional development for all early childhood providers: 

• Organize a day-long annual symposium on growth mindset in February 2018  
• Offer 20 hours of professional development training 
• Provide training on the Creative Curriculum with an emphasis on social-emotional 

learning 
• Provide support and coaching on the new Teaching Strategies GOLD platform 
• Administer pre and post social-emotional questionnaires at trainings to facilitate the 

reflection process 
• Observe classrooms, share observations with staff, and provide coaching and mentoring 

based on classroom observations. 
 
Provide specialized professional development for Head Start teachers: 
• Orient new Head Start staff to the Creative Curriculum, Teaching Strategies GOLD and the 

Fidelity Tool   
• Continue a second year of support for teachers who participated in last year’s Fidelity Tool 

workshop.  
 
Public Preschool Coordination  

• Develop a community organizing program to reach hard to engage at-risk families and 
encourage them to enroll their children in publicly-funded preschool 

• Work with the Oak Park Department of Public Health to ensure that 100% of families 
receiving family care are referred for home visiting.  

 
Unified Early Childhood Database  

• Continue progress on targets set in the 2017 Plan for Progress 
• Complete the development of a user-friendly front-end interface for the Unified Early 

Childhood Database 
• Continue to transfer and link data across multiple data sources 
• Create a profile of Oak Park and River Forest children under five using the newly 

acquired data from CCAP, EI, SNAP, TANF and WIC 
• Continue to modify data collection strategies and identify new tools in order to improve 

the accuracy and completeness of data collection. 
 
Organizational Capacity  

• Identify new board candidates who are willing and able to support the funding needs of 
the organization and use their professional expertise to oversee organization operations 

• Increase efforts to identify and secure new sources of grant funding 
• Identify best practices for early childhood staffing and hiring to help local providers meet 

the increased demand for early childhood care  
• Use new communications infrastructure to increase community awareness of the 

Collaboration, the services we provide, Oak Park’s innovative approach to addressing the 
need for quality early childhood education, and the short and long-term benefits of early 
learning 
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• Participate in Erikson Institute's Early Development Instrument (EDI) Pilot Project to 
map the early childhood environment in Oak Park. We will be working throughout the 
year with District 97 and community partners to create a portrait of our kindergarteners, 
the developmental strengths and needs by location, and initiate a conversation on how the 
Village and school districts should respond to these findings. The EDI will allow Oak 
Park to determine precisely where to intervene and better align resources as well as help 
identify policy responses and the need for additional assets and programs by community 
area. 
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ABSTRACT

The Collaboration for Early Childhood has a 
contract with the Village of Oak Park, Oak Park 
Elementary School District 97 and Oak Park  
River Forest High School District 200 to develop 
an integrated system of high-quality early 
childhood programs and services to benefit all 
children birth to kindergarten age living in Oak 
Park and River Forest. Data collection and use of 
data are integral to the Contract for Services to 
better understand Oak Park’s and River Forest’s 
youngest children, monitor service delivery and 
usage, and measure impact.

The Collaboration is pleased to present this 
report to the IGA Governing Board to show the 
results of activity during the 2016-2017 school 
year. This marks the fourth year of data  
collection for most of the eleven outcomes. 
This is the fourth report about our progress on 
the indicators and corresponding data collection 
since contract initiation. We issued the initial 
report in May 2015.

Submitted September 27, 2017

REPORT 
TO THE IGA 

GOVERNING 
BOARD
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Introduction

The Collaboration for Early Childhood proudly presents to the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) 
Governing Board our progress report on our eleven contractual measures. We have made dramatic 
and important progress in our work to measure our impact, provide actionable information to our  
partners, and continue our commitment to ask questions about the data we have to ensure we  
understand its significance and relevance. Our data work helps to imbue an orientation to 
continuous improvement. Importantly, the Collaboration’s work with data continues to break ground: 
no other community or the State of Illinois itself looks at this range of data, linked to inform their 
work.  Foundations, school districts and other community early childhood systems groups call us for  
guidance and see us as a resource in developing their measurement capacities. We are excited 
about what we have accomplished and hope the IGA Board shares our enthusiasm and pride. 

• We have more linked data about children and services for longitudinal analyses in one location
than any other community.

• We have a growing number of partners participating in our efforts and contributing to outcomes
and data collection.

• We have increased our sources of data through the execution of data sharing agreements
between Chapin Hall and the Illinois Department of Human Services and by enacting data sharing
agreements with all three home visiting agencies.

• Data collection by the Collaboration staff and key partners continues to improve in accuracy and
completeness.

• We have created a plan that we will implement in 2017-2018 with funding from Grand Victoria
Foundation ($90,000 over two years) to develop a robust profile of the 2015-2016 kindergarten
children including their risk characteristics. We will engage in analyses of trends and
characteristics related to engagement in early childhood education and early intervention.

Executive Summary

This report provides a fourth data point in our longitudinal series, the third after the initial baseline 
for the 2013-14 school year. While we might expect to see trends in the trajectory of progress on  
indicators, we have found, like last year, that this touch point provides a richer set of information 
that opens up more areas of inquiry. The important work is in continually improving both our data  
collection and our program activities based on each new point of information. We do see some 
trends, noted below, and other results invite us to delve deeper to understand the context and  
scenarios that may impact our measures. This process is part of our ongoing cycle to evaluate and 
refine programs in order to improve the lives of children and families.

3Collaboration for Early Childhood Report to the IGA Governing Board, September 27, 2017
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Measure Source Progress on 
Measure

Progress on  
Data Collection

Ch
ild

 #
1

Percent of children identified through screening as  
needing assessment or services that receive them. IDHS

• The number of children screened increased by 13% exceeding our goal of 7%. An increasing number of
children are being referred for assessments to Early Intervention and Early Childhood Special Education.

• Data collection has changed to green now that Chapin Hall has Early Intervention data from IDHS. However,
there will always be EI data that we are not able to access (i.e. private insurers). We believe that data
collection is as good as we can achieve into the foreseeable future, hence we have indicated the status of
data collection as green with a hole.

Ch
ild

 #
2

Percent of children in Oak Park / River Forest 
Preschool for All & Head Start demonstrating 
age-appropriate proficiency in each domain of 
development according to the Illinois Early  
Learning Standards.

GOLD

• We are retaining the indication of green because of the marginal change in the scores for children. A change
from 89% to 87% proficient on the GOLD assessment is not especially meaningful for this indicator when the
number of children we report on increased by 74%. The prior year's measure may not have been
representative.

• Data collection continues to improve, as more children have complete scores across all objectives at all of the
publicly funded programs.

Ch
ild

  #
3

Percent of children entering kindergarten  
demonstrating age-appropriate proficiency in the 
Kindergarten Readiness Test (KRT).

D97

• While we made positive progress overall on this indicator, we have cut a hole in the middle because while the percentage 
of FRPL students achieving proficiency increased by 2%, the percentage of FRPL students in PFA/HS decreased by 3%.

• Data collection improved this past year for the children enrolled in the publicly funded programs; 96% completed the KRT. 
However, the percentage of all children with KRT scores in this cohort is at 83%. 

Data Scorecard

We have introduced a new circle to communicate our progress – a green circle with a hole in the 
center. This figure signifies progress in either data collection or on our measure. It also conveys a 
caution. In the case of data collection, it means that we have advanced our efforts as far as we can 
and that while there may still be gaps in the data, it is as good as we will be able to achieve into the 
foreseeable future. The limitations are due to data collection such as the inability to know the number 
of children receiving developmental services through private insurance or quality rating scores other 
than circles of quality. In conveying progress on our measures, the new circle indicates that the  
measures are in the range of where we’d like them to be or that a slight backward movement needs 
to be understood in the context of significantly changing denominators or an increase in the number 
of valid data points upon which the measure is based. For example, the number of Preschool for All 
children with full assessment scores increased by 74% from the previous year suggesting that the 
new year may have more representative scores.

We met or exceeded the target on eight of the nine outcome measures included in this report. The 
quality and quantity of data collection improved in all but two of the nine measures. Data collection 
issues for one of the measures remained unchanged (teen births and Medicaid data) and for 
another, the data collection for families referred and participating in home visiting programs improved 
somewhat through aggregate reporting. A new data sharing agreement will change that circle to  
green in 2017- 2018. Our data scorecard, below, provides more detail.
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Data Scorecard

Measure Source Progress on 
Measure

Progress on  
Data Collection

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
  #

1 Kindergarteners receiving Free/Reduced Price 
Lunch have  attended a PFA/HS/NAEYC 
accredited program, or program in ExceleRate 
GOLD Circle of Quality

D97

• Progress has been upgraded to green since more low income children have a history of attending high-quality
preschool. However, there is still significant work that needs to be done to find and enroll more of our lower income
children in Preschool for All and Head Start programs.

• Due to improvements in D97’s enrollment system with input from the Collaboration, we have better data on
preschool attendance.
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2 Teen parents and families receiving up through All Kids 
Level 1 health insurance for kids under age 3 are  
referred to intensive parent education program.

IDHS and Home 
Visiting Agencies

• The three home visiting programs are expanding their outreach capacity, and have committed to participating in a
coordinated intake program led by the Village's Nurse Family Case Manager. However, there is still a paucity of referrals
from social service agencies and WIC.

• We do not have a solid source for the number of births to teen moms or children enrolled in All Kids.
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 3 Percent of referred parents choosing to participate in the 

intensive parent education program. Home Visiting 
Agencies

• We continued to exceed the national average by engaging into the program more than half of all families who are
referred for services.

• Data on home visiting from one of three programs was provided in aggregate form rather than with detail on individual
families. This should improve in the next year as a result of a newly executed data sharing agreement.
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Percent of K & 1st grade students with Individual  
Educational Plans (IEPs) receiving services in early 
childhood (if in Oak Park / River Forest in early  
childhood).

District 97 and 
District 90

• There was a very slight drop in the percentage of kindergarteners with IEPs, and a 1% drop in first graders with IEPs.
However, the purpose of this outcome is to ensure that children received services they need during early childhood. A drop
or rise in this number is difficult to interpret.

• Data received from District 97 is now detailed when previously it was in aggregate form, enabling the Collaboration and
Chapin Hall to engage in a richer analysis over the next year.

• The Collaboration does not currently have any data from District 90 but has received data from IDHS.
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Number of families with kids under 5 who are in the 
voluntary database. Collaboration

• The number of families who receive information about the Collaboration via the ASQ and Parenting Resource programs
has increased steadily. The number of families choosing to participate in the voluntary database continues to grow.

• We are exploring ways to capture information about the number of families served through our partner agencies in their
workshops and other activities that the Collaboration does not directly sponsor.
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Percent of teachers and directors in Oak Park early 
childhood programs who exceed minimum state  
educational requirements for their role.

INCCRRA 
and 

Collaboration

• Progress on this measure will be reported in November 2017 after our workforce survey is complete and analyzed.
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Percent of teachers and child care providers reporting 
more than the state-mandated 20 hours of continuing  
professional education each year.

INCCRRA 
and 

Collaboration

• Progress on this measure will be reported in November 2017 after our workforce survey is complete and analyzed.
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Percent of preschools, child care centers, and homes 
engaged in the Illinois Quality Rating System  
(ExceleRate), and improve their scores each year

ExceleRate 
and 

Collaboration

• Fewer family child care providers actively engaged in the quality rating system during 2016-2017. Their participation may
have been over-stated in the past and we are applying a more stringent standard on what "engagement" means from now
on.

• Fewer child care centers and preschools engaged in the state quality rating system as well. Three chose to participate in a
national system instead. However, a number of child care centers and preschools did improve their scores.

• Data is collected via self-reports from centers and family child care providers. The state agency that oversees ExceleRate
shares only publicly available information on scores. We do not anticipate that this will chance in the near future.

Data Scorecard continued

Measure Source Progress on  
Measure

Progress on  
Data Collection

Progress Highlights

Our Developmental Screening program continues to grow. We screened 13% more children than  
last year. We now have access to EI data that will contribute to our understanding of children’s  
experiences as they enter kindergarten. Additionally, participating sites are beginning to increase 
their use of the ASQ database to record information about referrals and receipt of services showing 
growth in their understanding of the importance of data collection and reports to inform their work. We 
are excited about the continued growth in the program. We believe that the more children we screen, 
the greater the chance we have of identifying every child who should be assessed for needing some 
kind of intervention. 

Children are entering kindergarten eager to learn and ready to succeed at about the same levels as 
prior years as shown on the Teaching Strategies GOLD and Kindergarten Readiness Test (KRT) 
scores. The percentage of children demonstrating proficiency on the KRT increased over 2015-2016 
for the total cohort by 3% but children enrolled in the Preschool for All and Head Start programs did 
not score as well as the previous year. The percentage of children enrolled in these programs who 
scored proficient declined by 4%. Similarly, GOLD proficiency scores for the 4-year-old cohort in the 
public preschool programs also declined by 2%. However, the percentage of low income children in 
these programs who earned a proficient score was higher at 89%. African-American children also 
showed gains while the percentage of white children demonstrating proficiency decreased (92% and 
86% respectively).  
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Progress Highlights continued

The changes in GOLD and KRT scores underline several important considerations as we continue to 
work with our partners. Our improved data collection for the GOLD (74% increase in complete 
records) may have provided a more accurate representation of the children enrolled in the Preschool 
for All and Head Start programs. Our new ability to analyze cohorts for risk profiles and differences in 
early learning experiences helps us to understand whom we serve. We are also making gains in 
ensuring that children with highest needs are prioritized for enrollment in the Preschool for All and 
Head Start programs. This means that they are starting their preschool and kindergarten years at 
different developmental stages and with greater challenges than prior cohorts.  
We have also made gains to ensure that more children with the highest needs are prioritized for 
enrollment in the Preschool for All and Head Start programs. This means that this cohort is starting 
their preschool and kindergarten years at different developmental stages and with greater challenges 
than prior cohorts. 
While we are pleased with the progress in enrolling children confronting risks, we are not satisfied 
with our gains at finding and enrolling our highest needs children. For example, in looking at the 
number of low income children who benefited from the Preschool for All and Head Start programs last 
year, the data show that there was a significant jump in the number of children enrolled in the Free/
Reduced Price Lunch program who participated in Preschool for All and Head Start programs, from 
26 to 37, or 42%. While we are pleased with this progress, it still constitutes only 39% of low income 
children accessing these important programs. 
We have also made important strides in collecting data from the three home visiting programs, and 
they are exceeding the national standard of enrolling 50% of children who are referred. Service levels 
have returned to where they were prior to a contract transition two years ago, although there is  
significantly more capacity in the system. Finding and engaging families continues to be a priority.
Our report shows that initial work to implement the Parenting Resource Program has increased our 
ability to connect with families. We anticipate continued growth over the next two years as the 
program develops.

Next Steps

We will prepare a report on the professional development indicators for the November meeting when 
the surveys of providers are completed and analyzed. Like the last three data reports, we will share 
this report with the Collaboration committees to identify program activities that support improved 
services for children and families. However, contextual considerations remain critically important 
when looking at data and determining progress on the 11 indicators in our contract. Data is only 
meaningful when understood in context. Progress has to be defined both in terms of a numeric 
change and in a context of multiple factors.
As we have noted before, an increase or decrease in a particular indicator may not mean progress. It 
may mean that services are being provided to children who do not need them or that the eligibility 
pool for services is being cast too wide. However, if we design the analysis well, we will be able to 
adjust for some of the factors that may be biasing our results.
As we work over the next few years, the progress targets cannot become an end unto themselves. 
Some targets will focus more on the process or programming needed to make progress. Others may 
simply identify the movement of the target. The data collection and monitoring process is establishing 
a high-quality feedback loop whose purpose is to focus our efforts on serving children well – 
providing strong services, generating useful data and setting ambitious and realistic targets.
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Integrated Database Schema
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Portrait of Children Ages 0-5 in Oak Park and River Forest
Census Figures

The population figures come from the American Community Survey 5-year averages. This means 
that for any year that we report, the data could have been collected in any of the five previous years 
and there is potentially overlap in the cases that make up each of the statistics from 2013-2015. This 
makes it difficult, along with the small sample size, to discern trends from one year to the next.

The tables provide trends in the number of children 0-5 in Oak Park and River Forest from  
2013-2015. For Oak Park, the margin of error for the total children 0-5 is close enough to the  
difference between 2013 and 2015 to suggest that there really is not a change in the number of 
children in Oak Park over this time period. One can conclude that there are roughly 4,000  
children 0-5 in Oak Park.

However, the decrease in the number of African-American children is a real one, from a statistical 
point of view, and a significant one, from a substantive point of view. Though we are not precisely 
sure of the decrease, we are certain that there is one. Given the stability in the number of children in 
Oak Park, the best explanation for the change is that there has been an increase in children age 0-5 
who identify as "Other Race."

There is even less certainty around the statistics in River Forest. It may be the case that there are 
more children who are reported as being of two or more races, but we would need more data to be 
certain of that.

When we look at the percent of children who live in poverty, the number of children 0-5 in Oak Park 
below 185% of the Federal Poverty Level (FPL) has decreased. 
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U.S. Census Bureau, 2015 American Community Survey 
The 2015 Federal Poverty Level (FPL) is defined as $24,250 for a family of four.

Children Ages 0 - 5,

Oak Park
2013 2014 2015

% Change

2013 to 2014

% Change

2014 to 2015

% Change

2013 to 2015

White 2,738 2,503 2,704 -8.6% 8.0% -1.2%
Black/African-American 691 680 493 -1.6% -27.5% -28.7%

American Indian/Alaskan Native 0 0 0 NA NA NA
Asian 234 233 208 -0.4% -10.7% -11.1%

Hawaiian / Pacific 0 0 0 NA NA NA
Other Race1 106 143 127 34.9% -11.2% 19.8%

Two or More races 451 426 381 -5.5% -10.6% -15.5%
Total Children, 0-5 4,220 3,985 3,913 -5.6% -1.8% -7.3%

Of Which, Hispanic / Latino2 300 338 293 12.7% -13.3% -2.3%

Children Ages 0 - 5,

Oak Park

% below 
FPL

2013

% below 
FPL

2014

% below 
FPL

2015

% Change 
in % below FPL

2013 to 2014

% Change 
in % below FPL 

2014 to 2015

%  Change 
in % below FPL

2013 to 2015
White 1.5% 4.1% 5.7% 2.6% 1.6% 4.2%

Black/African-American 26.0% 20.9% 10.1% -5.1% -10.8% -15.9%
American Indian/Alaskan Native NA NA NA NA NA NA

Asian 26.9% 21.5% 8.2% -5.4% -13.3% -18.7%
Hawaiian / Pacific NA NA NA NA NA NA

Other Race1 26.4% 22.4% 23.6% -4.0% 1.2% -2.8%
Two or More races 5.8% 5.9% 13.1% 0.1% 7.2% 7.3%
Total Children, 0-5 8.0% 8.8% 7.7% 0.8% -1.1% -0.3%

Of Which, Hispanic / Latino2 15.3% 14.8% 12.6% -0.5% -2.2% -2.7%

Children Ages 0 - 5,

River Forest 2013 2014 2015
% Change 

2013 to 2014
% Change 

2014 to 2015
% Change 

2013 to 2015

White 521 541 548 3.8% 1.3% 5.2%
Black/African-American 117 55 91 -53.0% 65.5% -22.2%

American Indian/Alaskan Native 0 0 0 NA NA NA
Asian 38 42 36 10.5% -14.3% -5.3%

Hawaiian / Pacific 0 0 0 NA NA NA
Other Race1 0 0 0 NA NA NA

Two or More races 43 59 129 37.2% 118.6% 200.0%
Total Children, 0-5 719 697 804 -3.1% 15.4% 11.8%

Of Which, Hispanic / Latino2 0 16 59 NA 268.8% NA

Children Ages 0 - 5,

River Forest

% below 
FPL

2013

% below 
FPL

2014

% below 
FPL

2015

% Change in 
% below FPL

2013 to 2014

% Change in 
% below FPL

2014 to 2015

% Change in % 
below FPL

2013 to 2015

White 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Black/African-American 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

American Indian/Alaskan Native NA NA NA NA NA NA
Asian 31.6% 35.7% 41.7% 4.1% 6.0% 10.1%

Hawaiian / Pacific NA NA NA NA NA NA
Other Race1 NA NA NA NA NA NA

Two or More races 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Total Children, 0-5 1.7% 2.2% 1.9% 0.5% -0.3% 0.2%

Of Which, Hispanic / Latino2 NA 0.0% 0.0% NA 0.0% NA

¹ “Other Race” includes all other responses not included in the white, Black or African-American, American Indian or Alaskan Native, Asian, and Native 
Hawaiian or Other pacific Islander race categories described above. Respondents reporting entries such as multiracial, mixed, interracial, or a Hispanic 
or Latino group (for example, Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, or Spanish) in response to the race question are included in this category.

² Children identified as Hispanic/Latino may be from any of the race categories above.
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Children Ages 0 - 5,

Oak Park and River Forest
2013 2014 2015 % Change 

2013 to 2014
% Change 

2014 to 2015
% Change 

2013 to 2015

White 3,259 3,044 3,252 -6.6% 6.8% -0.2%
Black/African-American 808 735 584 -9.0% -20.5% -27.7%

American Indian/Alaskan Native 0 0 0 NA NA NA
Asian 272 275 244 1.1% -11.3% -10.3%

Hawaiian / Pacific 0 0 0 NA NA NA
Other Race 106 143 127 34.9% -11.2% 19.8%

Two or More races 494 485 510 -1.8% 5.2% 3.2%
Total Children, 0-5 4,939 4,682 4,717 -5.2% 0.7% -4.5%

Of Which, Hispanic / Latino 300 354 352 18.0% -0.6% 17.3%

Children Ages 0 - 5,

Oak Park and River Forest

% below 
FPL

2013

% below 
FPL

2014

% below 
FPL

2015

% Change in 
% below FPL

2013 to 2014

% Change in 
% below FPL

2014 to 2015

% Change in  
% below FPL

2013 to 2015

White 1.2% 3.4% 4.7% 2.2% 1.3% 3.5%
Black/African-American 22.3% 19.3% 8.6% -3.0% -10.7% -13.7%

American Indian/Alaskan Native NA NA NA NA NA NA
Asian 27.6% 23.6% 13.1% -4.0% -10.5% -14.5%

Hawaiian / Pacific NA NA NA NA NA NA
Other Race 26.4% 22.4% 23.6% -4.0% 1.2% -2.8%

Two or More races 5.3% 5.2% 9.8% -0.1% 4.6% 4.5%
Total Children, 0-5 7.1% 7.8% 6.7% 0.7% -1.1% -0.4%

Of Which, Hispanic / Latino 15.3% 14.1% 10.5% -1.2% -3.6% -4.8%

Ratio of Income to FPL for Children 
Ages 0 - 5¹

Oak Park
2013 2014 2015 % Change 

2013 to 2014
% Change 

2014 to 2015
% Change 

2013 to 2015

Children below 125% of FPL 390 405 332 3.8% -18.0% -14.9%
Children below 185% of FPL 609 618 492 1.5% -20.4% -19.2%
Children below 400% of FPL 1,337 1,369 1,141 2.4% -16.7% -14.7%

All Children, ages 0-5 4,220 3,985 3,913 -5.6% -1.8% -7.3%

Ratio of Income to FPL for Children 
Ages  0 - 5¹

River Forest
2013 2014 2015 % Change 

2013 to 2014
% Change 

2014 to 2015
% Change 

2013 to 2015

Children below 125% of FPL 21 23 25 9.5% 8.7% 19.0%
Children below 185% of FPL 21 23 25 9.5% 8.7% 19.0%
Children below 400% of FPL 156 194 221 24.4% 13.9% 41.7%

All Children, ages 0-5 719 697 804 -3.1% 15.4% 11.8%

400% of FPL = income bracket for Preschool for All 
185% of FPL = qualification for Free/Reduced Price Lunch 
125% of FPL = qualification for state subsidies such as the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 
(formerly known as food stamps)

¹ The ratio of the household income to the 2015 poverty threshold

Collaboration for Early Childhood Report to the IGA Governing Board, September 27, 2017 11
112



Kindergarten 
Enrollment

Oak Park District 97

% Change

2013 to 2014

% Change

2014 to 2015

% Change

2013 to 2015

% Change

2013 to 2016

Kindergarten Students 8.6% 3.5% 12.3% 15.9%

• Nearly one out of every six children - 15% (a total of 97 out of the 633 children in the 2015-16
kindergarten cohort) - come from families that received SNAP benefits at or before the time they
enrolled in kindergarten in District 97.

• 58% of African-American children received SNAP during or prior to their kindergarten enrollment,
compared to 24% of Hispanic and 2% of white children.

In-Migration
Chapin Hall has also analyzed the self-reported information families provide about their residential 
history during kindergarten registration. 

• About 1/3 of all incoming 2015-2016 District 97 kindergarten students moved into Oak Park prior
to entering kindergarten. This seems to be the case for all sub-groups of children, as we did not
find differences in the rate of mobility by race, gender or age in months at kindergarten entry.

The 2016-17 kindergarten cohort had the following racial composition: 56.6% white, 13.8% African-
American, 13.5% Hispanic, 11.4% Mixed Race, and 4.6% Asian.

Regarding the race/ethnicity composition of the 203 children from families who moved to Oak Park 
before entering kindergarten, the majority were white (53%) while African-American and Hispanics 
make up considerably smaller percentages of that population (15% and 12% correspondingly).

We are demonstrating the potential utility of linking multiple sources of data to the District 97 data by 
starting analysis of the 2015-2016 Kindergarten cohort.  We start by reporting some socioeconomic 
(poverty) and demographic (in-migration) characteristics.  In the future, we will be able to add  
additional statistics, particularly around school readiness and disability. 

Poverty
New state-level administrative data adds an additional perspective to the census figures. For this 
project, Chapin Hall secured the use of Oak Park data from the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance 
Program, or SNAP (formerly known as food stamps). While we are in the initial phase of diving into 
this new resource, these are some initial findings:
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Child Outcome 1: Children identified through screening as needing assessment or 
services receive them.

We continue to receive aggregate numbers from District 97 for sub-measures two to four.
During 2015-16, District 97 moved to a different database for special education. Because of the
change, we are less confident in the numbers. We plan to work with District 97 to determine if
data fields incorporating these sub-measure can be included in the students’ records to ensure
a reliable data point from year to year.

Submeasure 1: Number of children screened.
● 1,586 children received developmental screens using the ASQ-3 or ASQ:SE/SE-2 during 

2015-16. This is a 29% increase in children screened from the previous year and it
exceeds the 15% increase we had targeted for this measure.

2014-15 2015-16

Total developmental screenings using
the ASQ-3 or ASQ:SE

1,229 1,586

Hearing screenings 1,273 1,249

Vision screenings 1,288 1,311

Social-emotional screening (ASQ:SE-2) 1,096 1,310

ASQ-3 1,065 1,508

Submeasure 2: Number (percent) of children referred for assessments receive them.
● The Data Sharing Agreement (DSA) between Chapin Hall and the Illinois Department of

Human Services (DHS) regarding Early Intervention was signed on August 30, 2016.
Because this accomplishment is so recent, DHS had not transferred the data to Chapin 
Hall in time for its use in this report. For this reason, we do not yet know the total number
of children who were referred to Early Intervention for additional assessments.

● In spring 2015, the Collaboration introduced a referral field in the ASQ web application to
monitor the number of referrals made to Early Intervention and Early Childhood Special

Child Outcome 1: Children identified through screening as needing assessment or services 
receive them.

Submeasure 1: Number of children screened.
• Our goal was a 7% increase in the number of total developmental screenings from last year.

Our actual increase was 13%, to 1,806 total screenings. 

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Total children receiving ASQ-3 or ASQ: SE-2 1,229 1,586 1,806

Total children receiving ASQ-3 and ASQ: SE-2 N/A N/A 1,524

Total children receiving ASQ-3 1,065 1,508 1,726

Total children receiving ASQ:SE-2 1,096 1,310 1,604

Hearing screenings 1,273 1,249 1,353

Vision screenings 1,288 1,311 1,411

Submeasure 2: Number (percent) of children referred for assessments receive them.
• 90% of programs participating in the ASQ use the Collaboration’s follow up fields in the ASQ web

application to monitor activities for children in response to screenings, including the number of
referrals made to Early Intervention and Early Childhood Special Education. Two of the three 
medical practices are also using these fields. Collaboration documentation shows that 22 children 
were referred to Early Intervention for assessments and 20 received the assessment.  

• 51 children were referred to District 97 by Early Intervention for transition assessment and
meetings. 

• Sixty-one children came to District 97 through Child Find or via the Collaboration’s screening  
program. Of these children, 26 received further assessments to determine service eligibility for 
District 97, and two families declined further evaluation of their child. 

• 60% of the children who were referred for assessments due to concerns identified through the
hearing screening were assessed and received treatment.
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Submeasure 3: Number (percent) of children assessed are found eligible for services.
• 20 children (out of 22 referred) were found eligible for services through the Early Intervention

program.

• 29 of the 51 children (57%) referred by CFC #7 (Child and Family Connections #7) and
assessed by District 97 were found eligible for services.

• 18 of the 26 children (69%) who received further assessments after a screening through Child
Find were found eligible for services.

• An additional six children were found eligible for other services by private providers

• This is not a submeasure where we should be setting a target. We monitor and record this
number, which varies from year to year.

Submeasure 4: Number (percent) of children identified as eligible for services receive them.
Services for children birth to three years old
• Nineteen of the 20 children found eligible for Early Intervention Services are receiving them.

• We hope to receive a fuller picture of the number of children being assessed and receiving
services from Early Intervention with the new data available through Chapin Hall’s data sharing
agreements with the state. We will not know about services paid for out of pocket or by private
insurance companies or parents other than through provider reports in the ASQ database.

Services for children three to five years old
• Parents of all of the children found eligible for services enrolled in D97 services.

Our ASQ database shows that 37 children received services through private providers. This number 
includes children who may have begun receiving services prior to enrollment in a site participating in 
our screening or whose parents sought services other than through the channels established by our 
program. 

Child Outcome 1 continued
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Child Outcome 2: Percent of children in Oak Park and River Forest Preschool for All and Head 
Start (PFA/HS) who demonstrate age-appropriate proficiency in each domain of development 
in accordance with the Illinois Early Learning Standards.

Proficiency is measured using the Teaching Strategies GOLD assessment system, which is  
administered by teachers in fall, winter, and spring in Preschool for All and Head Start classrooms. 
It is an observation-based portfolio assessment. The scores discussed in this report are based on 
spring scores.  

The GOLD assessment has 38 objectives across 8 domains. The Preschool for All committee, with 
the guidance of a researcher at Loyola University who studies preschool transitions to kindergarten, 
identified 10 of these objectives as representative of proficiency in the different domains. We plan to 
review this practice over the next couple of years to determine if we are monitoring the best  
objectives to indicate proficiency.

Importantly this year, the number of students we are reporting on increased by 74%, from 47 in 
Spring 2015 to 82 in Spring 2016. For accuracy’s sake, we can only report on GOLD proficiency for 
those students who have complete scores for all 10 of the target objectives. A combination of factors 
improved this result. The increase in complete records is due primarily to the Collaboration coaching 
the teaching staff in the importance of complete documentation. Additionally, our internal capacity to 
look at data closely and to analyze any gaps has greatly increased.

This is also the first year we are reporting on “Other” as a race category. In past years, the numbers
have been too statistically small to report on.

Proficiency on Teaching Strategies GOLD 

PFA/HS Children Enrolled in District 97 Kindergarten
Spring 
2013

Spring 
2014

Spring 
2015

Spring 
2016

% (number) of Students Proficient or Advanced 93% (55) 90% (36) 89% (47) 87% (82)

% (number) of FRPL Students Proficient or Advanced N/A N/A N/A 89% (24)

Proficiency on Teaching Strategies GOLD by Race
Spring 2013 Spring 2014 Spring 2015 Spring 2016

% 
Below/
Basic

% Proficient 
or Advanced

% 
Below/
Basic

% Proficient 
or Advanced

% 
Below/
Basic

% Proficient 
or Advanced

% 
Below/
Basic

% Proficient 
or Advanced

African- 
American 17% 83% 28% 72% 15% 85% 8% 92%
White 3% 97% 19% 81% 4% 96% 14% 86%
Other * * * * * * 17% 83%
* “Other” could not be broken out due to small number (under 10) in previous years. “Other” includes all other responses 
not included in the white, Black or African-American, American Indian or Alaskan Native, Asian, and Native Hawaiian or 
Other pacific Islander race categories described above. Respondents reporting entries such as multiracial, mixed, 
interracial, or a Hispanic or Latino group (for example, Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, or Spanish) in response to the 
race question are included in this category. Children identified as Hispanic/Latino may be from any of the race categories 
above.
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Child Outcome 2 continued
• The percent of children who scored proficient in all domains decreased slightly, by 2%. While we 

have noted this decrease, we also note that we have significantly increased the number of 
children who have complete records (74%). This may have led to a more complete picture of 
children in the program. The Collaboration continues to target 90% proficiency rates.

• African-American students had a proficiency rate of 92%, up from 85% the previous year, while 
proficiency in white students dropped from 96% to 86%. Different cohorts of children with differing 
risk factors enroll in PFA/HS programs each year, which can lead to variability in each cohort’s 
scores on proficiency standards. For example, the number of children from PFA/HS who received 
early childhood developmental services is already small, and when we look at them by how they 
perform on a certain GOLD domain, they get smaller. However, by keeping track of small groups 
over time, we will be able to see patterns of how prior history predicts likely experiences in the 
school system and the impact of teachers and curriculum on students.

• For the first time, we are able to examine the GOLD scores of children who participated in the 
Free/Reduced Price Lunch program. Disaggregating the data in this way shows that low income 
children as a group are doing as well (89% proficient) as the total group of children enrolled in 
Preschool for All and Head Start children for whom we have complete scores. We have complete 
GOLD scores for 27 of the 37 children enrolled in FRPL who also attended PFA/HS in the spring. 
We will further monitor the GOLD scores to ensure we have more complete records for low 
income children.

• Of all students who took the GOLD, 43% were white, 29% were African-American, and 28% were 
in the "Other" race category. 
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Child Outcome 3: Percent of children entering kindergarten demonstrating age-appropriate 
proficiency in the kindergarten readiness assessment administered by District 97.

While the KRT assessment rate for children enrolled in Preschool for All and Head Start programs 
has reached 96% due to the Collaboration’s onsite assessment in these programs, the 
assessment rate for all kindergarten children is at 83%.

The full, interactive, version of these results is online. In the online version, you can filter by year or 
breakout groups.

• We rely on the Kindergarten Readiness Test (KRT) for assessing the proficiency of children
entering kindergarten. The KRT is administered to incoming kindergarten students over the sum-
mer and goes through the third week of school.

• Comparing one year to the next is difficult because we are missing scores for a set of children
each year, and we do not know how different those students are from one year to the next.
However, we are continuing to collect KRT scores for more children in the PFA and Head Start
programs.

• Our target for improvement is a 2% increase in proficiency on the KRT each year. We surpassed
this for academic year 2016-17, improving from 80% to 83%.
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• Unlike the complete cohort of children who received a proficient score on the KRT, the percentage
of children who were proficient, participated in the Free/Reduced Lunch Program, and who
attended PFA/HS decreased by 3%, from 59% to 56%. This decline aligns with the proficiency
scores of all children enrolled in the PFA/ Head Start programs (4%). This may be due to the
increase in the number of children (18) who took the KRT. We are working with all of the programs
to understand what may have contributed to this decline and we are eager to review the
proficiency scores of children entering kindergarten in 2017 to determine if this was an aberration
or a trend. We may also be able to determine a better baseline if in fact the higher proficiency
scores for the years preceding fall 2016 were due to lower rates of participation, and we will work
to better understand the characteristics of the children who are not achieving proficiency.

Child Outcome 3 continued

KRT Participation Among Kindergarten Students
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• The percentage of children enrolled in the Preschool for All and Head Start programs who took the 
KRT increased significantly, from 77% to 91% to 96%. Our target was 95% of PFA/HS students 
taking the KRT.

• Of the 110 students who did not take the KRT, 26 (24%) were in the Free/Reduced Lunch 
Program and 19 (17%) had an IEP. Adjusting for entry date and IEP status, we expect that 
approximately 60 (55%) students who did not take the KRT should have taken it. We can overlay 
preschool history as well to see if there are ways we can work with District 97 to increase the 
number of students who take the KRT each year. 
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Service Delivery Outcome 1: Kindergarten students with Free and Reduced Price Lunch (FRPL) assistance have a history of 
participation in a PFA/HS/NAEYC accredited program, or a program meeting the Illinois Quality Rating System (ExceleRate)  
Gold Circle of Quality. 

Sub-measure: What percent of kindergarten students with an IEP were enrolled in one of the programs described above?

The full, interactive version of these results is online. In the online version you can filter by year or breakout groups. 
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Service Delivery Outcome 1 continued
• The number of students of any income level who enrolled in early learning programs in Oak Park

or River Forest has increased each year, with a 3% increase over the past year.

• The number of students receiving Free/Reduced Price Lunch who had an early learning
experience in Oak Park or River Forest increased over last year from 43% to 56%. While this
increase is important, it is hard to extract much meaning from it when the total number of students
enrolled in the Free/Reduced Price Lunch program may be inaccurate due to an administrative
change at the state level. Additionally, we’d like to see significantly more low income children
enrolled in these programs.

• The Collaboration plans to establish a target on this measure next year when we are more
confident that we have an accurate method for collecting information about kindergarten children
who are eligible to participate in the Free/Reduced Price Lunch program. The data collection
method was changed in 2015-16 by the Illinois State Board of Education and this resulted in
significantly lower numbers of children being counted as participating in the program. The
enrollment process was changed for the current school year 2017-18, bringing it back in line with
the previous processes. This change will provide a more reliable count of children who are living in
low income households.

• Forty percent of all kindergarten students and 43% of kindergarten students receiving
Free/Reduced Price Lunch attended a high-quality preschool in Oak Park or River Forest - either
Preschool for All or Head Start or a NAEYC-accredited program or a program with ExceleRate
Gold status. While there has been a slight decrease in the percentage of children receiving Free/
Reduced Price Lunch in high quality preschool programs, there is an increase in the number of
children attending PFA/HS/NAEYC/Gold programs (36 to 40).

• The number of students receiving Free/Reduced Price Lunch who attended a NAEYC-accredited
or ExceleRate Gold preschool program doubled, from 10 to 21 (see interactive chart for detail).

• This year, the 40 children who attended a PFA/HS/NAEYC/Gold program is unduplicated. Some
PFA/HS sites also have NAEYC/Gold accreditation. In years past, this number was a combination
of PFA/HS students and students from NAEYC/Gold programs.
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• The percent of students with IEPs who had a history of attending a high-quality preschool
increased from 34% to 43%. However, changes in percent are strongly influenced by the small
number of children involved and by the specific reasons that qualify them for an IEP.

Service Delivery Outcome 1 continued
• The number of students receiving Free/Reduced Price Lunch who attended PFA/HS increased

from 26 to 37, or 42%. While we are pleased by this increase, we are not satisfied with the
number of low income children who are accessing our high-quality, free and accredited preschool
programs. We are placing a greater emphasis on outreach by implementing a parent leadership
and engagement program to ensure we are reaching as many low income children as possible.
We also need to better understand whether and why low income families are choosing not to
attend these programs.

• Preschool history is unavailable for 75 kindergarten students (12%), either because they did not
provide it during enrollment or because they did not have an early learning experience. Of these
75, 46 students indicated they did not attend preschool. All families have to indicate whether their
child participated in preschool, so parents of 29 students did not report where their child
participated in programs.
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Service Delivery Outcome 2: Teen parents and families receiving up through All Kids Level 1 
health insurance for their child under age 3 receive referral to intensive parent education 
program.

This measure continues to be difficult to obtain due to the limitations of available data on the  
number of parenting teens and the number of families receiving All Kids health insurance. However, 
there are now three programs operating in Oak Park, and all are providing some level of reporting to 
the Collaboration about the number of families who have been referred to their programs. 

We received the numbers for one program in aggregate form. We anticipate that with the new data 
sharing agreements (finalized over the summer of 2017), we will be able to derive numbers based on 
data exports rather than staff report.

Teen or Non-Teen 
Parents

Teen 

June 
2014

Non- 
Teen

June 
2014

Teen

June 
2015

Non- 
Teen

June 
2015

Teen

June 
2016

Non- 
Teen

June 
2016

Teen

June 
2017

Non- 
Teen

June 
2017

Number of families in Oak 
Park and River Forest  
receiving up through All 
Kids Level 1*

Not 
avail

Not 
avail

Not 
avail

Not 
avail

Not 
avail

Not 
avail

Not 
avail

Not 
avail

Number of families referred 
to Easterseals, Hephzibah 
or New Moms for parenting 
support

Not 
avail 55

Not 
avail 62

Not 
avail 36 * 63

*Also includes families who qualify for All Kids Assist and All Kids Share, which is managed by the Illinois Department of
Healthcare and Family Services. To qualify, families must meet income requirements based on their family size.

• We do not have a good source of data for the number of teen parents or the number of families
participating in All Kids. Further, we have few referrals from service agencies and those that do
refer often will not disclose the family income.

• The total number of families being referred to the three home visiting programs is back to the
numbers from the 2015 fiscal year. This represents a recovery from the disruption to services
brought about by transferring the program to a new vendor in 2015-16. The number does not
include the number of families referred to one program as they had not been reporting that num-
ber to us. It also includes a significant number of self-referrals at a second site. The number of
referrals from social service agencies and partner medical clinics and partner early childhood
programs is very low. We are initiating a coordinated intake process in fall 2017 and hope that this
will help to increase referrals.

• The Village of Oak Park’s Nurse Family Case Manager has traditionally been our main source of
referrals. However, this position has been open since December 2014 and nurse family case
management services were not offered during fiscal year 2016-17. A new hire was made and
began work as this reporting period was ending, and this person will be leading the coordinated
intake process beginning in November of this year.
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Service Delivery Outcome 3: Percent of referred parents who choose to participate in the  
intensive parent education program.

Easterseals, Hephzibah and New Moms (formerly Parenthesis Family Center) offer the Parents as 
Teachers model program. The Easterseals program, funded by the Collaboration, combines  
Parents as Teacher program requirements with Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting 
(MIECHV) requirements and standards. The first two and a half years of this program were offered by 
Parenthesis Family Center. Easterseals became our contractor as of January 2016 and they started 
enrolling families in March 2016. In the past twelve months of operation, the Easterseals program has 
accomplished tasks related to family engagement, community leadership, and program growth. Home 
visiting staff monitor child development and parenting effectiveness, offering resources and guidance 
to families.

The numbers in the chart include an aggregated report from one of the three programs. We anticipate 
that with the new data sharing agreements (finalized over the summer of 2017), we will be able to 
derive numbers based on data exports rather than staff report.

June 
2014

June 
2015

June 
2016

June 
2017

Number of families referred for home visiting 55 62 36 63
Number of families who actively engaged as new families 
in the home visiting program funded through the  
Collaboration. 27 40 20 35
Percentage of referred families who engaged in the  
program. 49% 65% 56% 56%
Total number of families engaged in the home visiting 
programs in Oak Park and River Forest. 27 67 72 86

• The number families choosing to engage in home visiting services increased this year. This is a 
reflection of Easterseals program growth combined with the efforts of two other programs. 

• Our target on this measure was to increase the rate at which referred families choose to engage 
in the home visiting programs by 5% and at a minimum to maintain of 50% rate of engagement. 
While we did not increase the rate at which families were engaged the prior year, we did continue 
to exceed the national average. 

• Of those who were referred to the program but did not enroll, the reasons why people declined 
services included being ineligible due to residency, declining home visiting services, already 
engaging with another home visiting agency, or generally deciding they don’t want home visiting 
services. There are many factors that affect how many families who are referred actually  
participate in home visiting, including trust, financial status, and parenting confidence. 

• The programs’ largest challenge continues to be receiving referrals from diverse service providers. 
Program staff have continued to meet formally with agencies, hang up marketing material  
throughout the community (particularly in places where likely clients might visit such as  
laundromats), and provide information packets and incentives to potential referral sources.  
Program administrators will continue to form relationships with other agency administration 
throughout Oak Park and River Forest. The establishment of coordinated intake through the  
Village should also assist in referrals.
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Service Delivery Outcome 4: Percent of kindergarten and 1st grade students with Individual 
Educational Plans (IEPs) who have documentation of receiving services in early childhood  
(if they lived in Oak Park or River Forest during their early childhood years).

The full, interactive version of these results is online. In the online version you can filter by year or 
breakout groups.

The data collection in this area has improved significantly over the last two years and we will work 
with District 97 to ensure this progress continues.

We are not trying to suppress the number of children with IEPs. We are hoping to follow the children 
who received IEPs or Early Intervention support early to determine if they do in fact have fewer IEPs 
as they progress through elementary school.

1Specific numbers for the 2016-17 Kindergarten cohort have been suppressed due to statistically small amounts.

1
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• The percentage of kindergarteners and first graders with IEPs has remained about the same 
across all years.

• The 2015 kindergarten class of 55 students with IEPs grew into a class of 62 first grade students 
with IEPs. However, the total number of students in this class also grew so that the percentage of 
students in this cohort with IEPs remained the same at 9%.

• This year we have included the number of students who received BOTH speech/language and 
other services when they were age 0-3. Almost all parents reported that their children received 
speech/language services and other developmental services. None of them reported receiving 
services without receiving speech/language. We are looking at the registration survey to  
determine if there is a way to clarify the information we are seeking.

• Of the children who received services due to a developmental delay when they were age 0-5, 83% 
attended preschool and 68% of these children attended a program run by District 97. An additional 
9% attended other preschool programs in Oak Park or River Forest.

.

Service Delivery Outcome 4 continued
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System Level Outcome 1: Estimate the Collaboration’s connection with all families in Oak Park 
and River Forest with children under five via direct and indirect measures.

Estimated percent of families with children under five touched by Collaboration services:

• Direct: Number of families reached through collaboration-sponsored outreach activities and  
services who provide information voluntarily and are included in our database.

• Indirect: Counts of information distributed, subscribers to information (social media, other  
open distribution channels).

June 
2014

June 
2015

June 
2016

June 
2017

Number of people in Oak Park and River Forest 63,199 63,199 63,199 63,199

Number of families with children < age 6 in Oak Park and River Forest 3,448* 3,448* 3,448* 3,448*

Direct: Oak Park/River Forest participants in the voluntary database:

Number of children enrolled in publicly funded preschool (Preschool 
for All and Head Start) 218 227 202 212
Number of children participating in the developmental screening  
program N/A 1,229 1,586 1,806
Number of families participating in the Parents As Teachers home  
visiting parent education program 27 81 67 53

Indirect: Families receiving information or support through the Collaboration’s efforts**:
Number of families receiving outreach materials from the Parenting 
Resource Program 483 700 912 2,700**
Number of people on the Collaboration’s email list who receive early 
childhood information 190 486 942 1,808

Number of unduplicated visitors to the Collaboration’s website N/A N/A 5,911 7,925

Number of people following the Collaboration’s Facebook page for 
parenting resources and information about early childhood 118 158 309 465

Number of printed Early Childhood Resource Directories distributed 6,500 4,000 10,000 2,500
* Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 Decennial Census; table P20. Updates to this number are not available until the next 
census.
** Many of the indirect counts are duplicated since people encounter our materials in many ways.

• Over the course of the past year, we increased participation in the Collaboration’s voluntary  
database by 8%. We are well on our way to meeting our goal to increase by 10% the number of 
families with children under five who are engaged in Collaboration sponsored and/or supported 
activities who participate in our voluntary database by June 2018 

• Our Early Childhood Resource Directory is published every two years, making distribution lower in 
the second year. A new edition is in the works for early 2018.
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System Level Outcome 1 continued

• We committed to increasing the number of families who receive information and support through 
the Collaboration and our partners to the greatest extent possible. The new Parenting Resource 
Program launched in February 2017. The results of the program work thus far led to: 

• We have successfully increased web activity (34% growth in unique visitors) through  
additional online linkages with our partners and a greatly increased subscription to our 
monthly newsletter (92%). We launched a new Parent Newsletter after this reporting period 
due to the requests we are receiving from parents for a news publication related specifically 
to parenting. 

• Our Facebook page has increased the number of followers by 50%. 

• Our web page analytics show a significant increase from last year in the number of people 
who searched the online Resource Directory for child care providers that accept CCAP (the 
state’s Child Care Assistance Program). In fact, it was the most searched category after the 
general “Child Care Center” listing, accounting for 14% of the page visits to the online  
Resource Directory versus 9% last year. 

• We are in the process of developing a new system to collect family engagement activities 
through the Parenting Resource Program. A beta version of this system is in place.

• Our new Parent Resource Program (PRP) committee includes seven community partners whose 
missions are to provide parenting support and information and low organized activities for children 
birth to five. They meet monthly to plan activities and share resources. The PRP committee  
coordinated education campaigns and events like promoting NAEYC’s Week of the Young Child, 
in which they distributed 1,500 flyers of tips for engaging with children at home and a listing of 
local activities. The group worked together to distribute over 750 summer information cards with  
information about summer reading, playgroups, free lunch, and scholarships available for early 
childhood activities.  

Collaboration for Early Childhood Report to the IGA Governing Board, September 27, 2017 27
128



System Level Outcome 2: Percent of teachers and directors in Oak Park early childhood 
programs who have above minimum state educational requirements for their role.

Submeasure: Percent of teachers and directors who hold or who increase their level of an 
Illinois Early Childhood Certificate.

This outcome will be updated in the November 2017 IGA report.

All survey respondents
2015

#

2016

#

2015

Above  
minimum  

requirements*

2016

Above  
minimum  

requirements*

Number (%) of directors 24 21
15

(63%)

14

(67%)

Number (%) of assistant directors 18 16
10

(56%)

10

(63%)

Number (%) of teachers 107 127
81

(76%)

95

(75%)

Number (%) of assistant teachers 61 57
51

(84%)

52

(91%)

Number (%) of early childhood professionals in 
Oak Park & River Forest responding to survey 210 221

157

(76%)

171

(77%)

Those who responded to survey in 2015 and 2016 Above minimum requirements*

% change

2 of 10 directors increased qualifications 20%

5 of 10 assistant directors increased qualifications 50%

26 of 58 teachers increased qualifications 45%

7 of 18 assistant teachers increased qualifications 39%

Number (%) of early childhood professionals in Oak Park & River 
Forest responding to survey in 2015 & 2016 96

* We know there are people in all positions who hold bachelor’s degrees in fields other than early childhood. These people 
must have 6-18 credit hours in early childhood coursework, depending on their position, in order to meet licensing  
standards. Some of these workers may have more than the minimum coursework required. We plan to enhance the 2017 
survey in order to see if we can determine how many people exceed this minimum standard.
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System Level Outcome 2 continued

Calendar Year 2013 

Results Completed by Site Directors*
2014  

#

Above  
minimum  

requirements
20 or more 

hours

Directors 
21

15

(71%) 13

Teachers
12

8

(67%) 62

Assistant teachers
105

54

(49%) 24

Assistant directors 
63

27

(43%) <10

Number (%) of early childhood professionals in 
Oak Park and River Forest responding to survey

202
104

(52%)

107

(53%)
* The 2013 survey was completed by site directors, which was different from the 2015 and 2016 self-reported surveys.

Illinois Early Childhood Certificate 2015 2016
Have submitted a Gateways Credential Application 126 people

58%

136 people

59%
Have a Gateways Illinois Director’s Credential 20 people

Level 1   5%

Level 2   3%

Level 3   1%

21 people

Level 1   5%

Level 2   2%

Level 3   2%
Have a Gateways Infant Toddler Credential 13 people

Level 2   4%

Level 3   1%

Level 4   0.5%

Level 5   0%

24 people

Level 2   7%

Level 3   2%

Level 4   0.4%

Level 5   2%
Have a Gateways Early Childhood Education Credential 48 people

Level 1   7%

Level 2   2%

Level 3   1%

Level 4   2%

Level 5   7%

Level 6   1%

86 people

Level 1   10%

Level 2   3%

Level 3   6%

Level 4   5%

Level 5   13%

Level 6   0.4%
Have an Illinois State Board of Education Professional 
Educators License (PEL)

62 people

28%

59 people

25%
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System Level Outcome 3: Percent of teachers and child care providers reporting more than 
the state-mandated 15 documented hours of continuing professional education each year.

This outcome will be updated in the November 2017 IGA report.

All License Categories, Self 
Reported

Number
Less than 15 

hours
15-19 
hours

15 
hours

16-19 
hours

20 or more 
hours

2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2016 2015 2016

Directors 24 21 <10 <10 <10 <10 <10 14 14

Assistant directors 18 16 <10 <10 <10 <10 <10 <10 <10

Teachers 107 127 29 37 30 22 25 48 43

Assistant teachers 61 57 24 25 20 10 <10 17 19
Number (%) of early child-
hood professionals in Oak 
Park & River Forest respond-
ing to survey 210 221

63

(30%)

68

(31%)

59

(28%)

37

(17%)

34

(15%)

88

(42%)

82

(37%)

Licensed Centers Only, Self Reported Number
Less than 
15 hours

15 
hours

16-19 
hours

20 or 
more 
hours

Directors 19 <10 <10 <10 14

Assistant directors 15 <10 <10 <10 <10

Teachers 109 26 20 24 39

Assistant teachers 44 12 <10 <10 19

Number (%) of early childhood professionals in 
Oak Park & River Forest responding to survey 187

42

(22%)

34

(18%)

33

(18%)

78

(42%)

All License Categories, Self Reported, 
Those Responding Both Years Number

Less than 
15 hours

15 
hours

16-19 
hours

20 or more 
hours

Directors 10 <10 <10 <10 <10

Assistant directors 10 <10 <10 <10 <10

Teachers 58 11 <10 12 26

Assistant teachers 18 <10 <10 <10 10
Number (%) of early childhood professionals 
in Oak Park & River Forest responding to 
survey in 2015 & 2016 96

18

(19%)

16

(17%)

15

(16%)

47

(49%)
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System Level Outcome 3 continued

Those who responded to survey in 2015 and 2016
Above minimum  
requirements* 

% change

6 of 10 directors increased qualifications 60%

2 of 10 assistant directors increased qualifications 20%

24 of 58 teachers increased qualifications 41%

10 of 18 assistant teachers increased qualifications 56%

Number (%) of early childhood professionals in Oak Park & River Forest 
responding to survey in 2015 & 2016 96 (44%)

Calendar Year 2013 

Results Completed by Site Directors* Number
15 

hours
20 or more 

hours

Directors 21 <10 13

Teachers 105 16 62

Assistant teachers 63 20 24

Assistant directors 12 <10 <10

Number (%) of early childhood professionals in Oak Park and River 
Forest responding to survey 202

42

(21%)

107

(53%)

* The 2013 survey was completed by site directors, which was different from the 2015 and 2016 self-reported surveys.
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System Level Outcome 4: Percent of preschools, child care centers, and homes that are 
engaged in the Illinois Quality Rating System (ExceleRate) and improve their scores each year.

The number of licensed preschools changed when Good Shepherd opened an additional location for 
infants and toddlers, and ABC Toon Town merged their two physical locations into one new building. 
Here we are noting ABC Toon Town as two centers in order to be consistent with previous reports, 
but in the next report they will be considered one program. One site (Children’s Garden) closed at the 
start of this report year.

1. Licensed half-day programs were not eligible to participate in the system in 2013-14. One preschool who had a GOLD 
and NAEYC rating in 2014-15 needed to re-apply for new ratings in 2015-16. Rather than completing both applications 
in one year, the preschool chose to obtain its NAEYC accreditation and is submitting its application for its GOLD status 
during 2016-17.

2. The number of unlicensed family child care providers is unavailable, however, in the future we expect to know the 
number of unlicensed family child care programs that receive CCAP.

June 
2014

June 
2015

June 
2016

June 
2017

Center-Based Programs
Number of licensed and exempt preschools and child care 
centers. 42 42 44 46

Number of licensed preschools and child care centers. 26 27 27 29

A. Number (%) of licensed and exempt preschools and 
child care centers that engaged in the ExceleRate  
program.

9

(21%)

20

(48%)

24

(55%)

20

(43%)

B.1 Number (%) of licensed and exempt preschools and 
child care centers engaged in ExceleRate and have  
received a score.

6

(14%)

12

(29%)

12

(27%)

15

(33%)

B.2 Number (%) of licensed preschools and child care  
centers engaged in ExceleRate and have received a score.

6

(23%)

11

(41%)

10

(37%)

15

(52%)

C. Number (%) of licensed and exempt preschools and 
child care centers involved in ExceleRate that improved 
their scores.

0

(0%)

11

(26%)

0

(0%)

4

(9%)

D. Number (%) of centers initially involved with ExceleRate 
and choosing NAEYC-accreditation -- -- --

4

(9%)

Family Child Care Providers

Number of licensed family child care homes. 38 37 36 34

A. Number (%) of licensed family child care homes that 
engaged in ExceleRate.

Not

Avail.

17

(46%)

19

(53%)

10

(29%)

B. Number (%) of licensed family child care homes  
engaged in ExceleRate who received a score.

Not

Avail. 0 0

2

(6%)

C. Number (%) licensed family child care homes engaged 
in ExceleRate who improved their scores.

Not

Avail. 0

1

(3%)

1

(3%)
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System Level Outcome 4 continued
A. Engaged in ExceleRate: A program is considered “engaged” in ExceleRate when 1) all staff meet 
requirements in order to apply for a credential through Gateways to Opportunity, OR 2) all staff submit 
credential applications to Gateways to Opportunity, OR 3) the staff registered for or attended Early 
Childhood Environment Rating Scale-Revised (ECERS-R) trainings.

B. Received a score: A program “receives a score” from a state-approved assessor when they 
reach the Gold Circle of Quality. Prior to reaching the Gold Circle of Quality, programs complete 
self-assessments using ECERS-R.

C. Improved a score: A program’s score is considered “improved” if it is higher than the 
previous year’s score. A score can be given by an independent, state-approved assessor or by 
self-assessment using ECERS-R.

• Our goal is to increase the number of preschools and child care centers that engage in  
ExceleRate to 31 by June 2018. As of June 2017, 20 providers are engaged in ExceleRate.  
This represents a decrease of four sites from the prior year. This decrease is due to three sites 
deciding not to participate in ExceleRate and limiting their involvement in quality rating systems 
to the accreditation process of the National Association of the Education of the Young Child 
(NAEYC). These programs are: Pilgrim Community Nursery School, Glasser Preschool, West 
Suburban Temple Har-Zion Early Childhood Center and Oak Park Friends. We plan to encourage 
these programs to re-engage in ExceleRate to maintain their Gold quality ratings during 2017-18 
in an effort to increase consistency in ratings for the parent community as they review programs.

• Eleven child care centers and preschools participated in ExceleRate and received a score. We 
have met our goal of 11 preschools and child care centers that engage in ExceleRate by  
submitting paperwork and receiving a score. Twelve providers received an ExceleRate score.  
Of these, seven maintained their Silver and Gold ratings.

• By June 2018, our goal is that 12 preschools and child care centers improve their scores by  
moving up in an ExceleRate circle of quality over the two year period of July 1, 2016-June 30, 
2017. As of June 2017, four have done so.

• Progress on the family child care provider engagement in ExceleRate declined over the past year. 
In retrospect, we believe we should have applied a more stringent standard to counting family 
child care provider involvement during 2015-16 by ensuring that they fully understood the  
credential requirements and that they intended to complete the necessary courses and trainings 
for a credential or earn a circle of quality. Nineteen providers submitted applications for a  
credential during 2015-16, however, 3 providers informed us that they planned to retire within the 
next year or two and would not be engaging further in the program. Others have shared that they 
find the credential requirements daunting and are not certain about continuing work to  
complete the coursework and training needed for the credential and ExceleRate.

• We plan to establish a cohort of providers to help them complete the online trainings necessary 
for advancement in ExceleRate. We have received assurances from Illinois Action for Children 
(the training organization for the state ExceleRate system in Cook County) that they will offer the 
required in-person trainings in Oak Park over the next year.

• Each program has to submit a Continuous Quality Improvement Plan (CQUIP) annually in order to 
increase their score. We have worked with programs to see what their plan requires and to offer 
guidance, which ties into the one-on-one coaching and technical assistance we provide, and we 
offered referrals to additional professional development opportunities.
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